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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Alfalah Securities (Private) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Alfalah Securities (Private) Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the statement
of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the imformation
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at December 31, 2024 and of the loss and other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to notes 21.1 and 21.2 to the annexed financial statements which describes the matters
related to contingencies in respect of customer claims against the Company as at December 31, 2024 and
the Company’s contention for not creating any provision against the same.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Directors’ Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Ayer,

bbbt o B AR SRR SRS R SR AR T 4 P LR

A. F. FERGUSON & C0., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PuwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, LI Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-pqo00, Pakistan
Tel: +02 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427038/32424740; <wngte pwe.con/phz

o KARACHI » LAHORE # ISLAMABAD



i

pwc AFFERGUSON&.CO.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the andit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the finaneial statements in
accordance with the aceounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enahle the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may east significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,

et




.

pwe AF-FERGUSON&CO.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant andit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

0

proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (X1X
of zo17);

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Company’s business;

o Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980);

the Company was in compliance with the requirements of section 78 of the Securities Act, 2015 and
section 62 of the Futures Market Act, 2016 and the relevant requirements of Securities Brokers
(Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016 as at the date on which the statement of financial
position was prepared; and

the Company was in compliance with the relevant requirements of Futures Brokers (Licensing and
Operations) Regulations, 2018 as at the date on which the statement of financial position was prepared.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Junaid Mesia.

WEgm &;L.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Dated: April 25, 2025

UDIN: AR2024106118V5DdGbTq



ALFALAH SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

Assels

Hon-current assats
Properly and equipment
Intangible assels
Long-term loans
Long-term deposils
Deferred taxation - net

Current assets

Trade receivables - nel

Investments

Loans and advances - net

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Taxation recoverable

Cash and bank balances

Total assels

Equity and liabilities

Share capital and reserves
Authaorised share capital

340,000,000 (31 December 2023: 150.000,000) ordinary shares

of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subseribed and paid-up share capital
Accumulated losses
Total equity

Liakilities

Mon-current liabilities

Long-term [oan

Payable against Diminishing Musharaka
Retirament benefil obligation

Lease |lability against right-of-use assals

Current liabllities

Trade and ofher payables

Current malurily of long-lerm loan

Current portion of payable against Ciminishing Musharaka
Currenl portion of lease liabilily against right-of-use assets
Short-term running finance facility

Total equity and liabilities

Contingencies and commitments

The annexed noles 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial slalements.

Chiaf Emﬁ twe Officer

Chief E}Hancial Officer

Note

|~ O e

10
11
12

13

14.1

14.2

15
16
17
18

10
15
18
18
20

|

2024 2023
ssmsessnnasnnn [RUPBES =rvoenssmsermsermnns
93,887,076 85,237,750
0,847,163 9,712,411
28,500 372,004
17,369,353 16,329,013
121,142,082 111,891,187
284,087,597 464,983,051
52,808,946 136,036,796
627,954 7,269,753
18,784,867 310,459,138
53,321,967 45,302,364
1,206,626 042 512,335,759

1,716,154,372

1,477,295,859

1,837 296,455 1,588,987,046
3,400,000,C00 1,500,000,000

1,600,000,000
(1,142,840,453)

400,000,000
{1,111,078,358)

457,150,547 (711,078,358)
300,000,000 =
10,480,241 18,379,262
35,527,564 43,058 826
13,322,083 1,087,087
350,329,898 62,835,176
086,080,114 1,512,621,607
0,583,544 316,257,534
4,4B6,806 4,601,874
20,272,011 3.281.813
404,535 400,477,300
1,020,807.010 2,237.230,228
1,837,286 4556 1,588 987.046
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ALFALAH SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Operaling revenue
Olher operaling revenue
Tolal revenua

Cosl of senvices
Gross profit

Adminisiralive and operating expenses
Operaling profit / {loss)

Financial charges

Other income - net

Qiher ¢charges

Allowance for expecled credit losses

Profit | {loss) for the year before taxation and levy

Lewy
Loss for the year before taxation

Taxalion
Loss for the year after taxation

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral par of these financial slatements.

Aee,
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Chiaf Eiahu\tl;'e Officer

Chief E‘[p’at"tciaf QFicer

HNote

22
23

24

25

26
27
28

29

29

2024 2023
(Restated)
R R Rupﬂga el
604,553,643 446,529,266
116,926,667 35,953,382
721,480,310 482 482,668
(408,403,152) (358,511,425)
313,077,158 123,971,243
(208,740 569) (143,960,728)
104,336,589 {19,989.485)
(163,691,745) {329,055,335)
152,470,217 195,818,149
- (2,000,000)
(80.,950,658) (14,567,712)
12,164,406 (168,784,383)
{45,737,157) (28,756,365)
(33,572,752) (197,540,748)
9,395,930 -
{24.176.822) (197,540,748)
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ALFALAH SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Note 2024 2023

................. RUPEES =remesrarsnnnrres
Loss for the year after taxation {24,176,822) {187 .540,748)
Comprehensive incomo:
Items that will not be reclassified to the statement of profit or loss

in subsequent years:
Actuarial gain on remeasurament of refiremenl benefit obligafion 176 5,717,202 6,495813
Related tax impact thereon = .
5,717,202 6,495,813

Total comprehensive loss for the year (18.459,620) (191,044,935)

The annexed notes 1 1o 42 farm an integral part of these financial slalements.

Miet,

Chief Exedutive Officer Chief Fifancial Officer Diractor



ALFALAH SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Balance as at 1 January 2023

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss for the year afier taxalion

Other comprehensive income for he year

Balance as at 31 December 2023

Total comprehensive income for the year

Loss for the year afler laxalion

Other comprehensiva income for the year

Transaction with owners directly recorded in equity

|ssuance of nght shares
Transaction coest pertaining o right issue (note 14.3)

Balance as at 31 December 2024

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

e

)

)

Chlef EXecitive Officer

ChiefFinancial Officer

Issued, Revenue
subscribed resorve Total
and paid-up | | Accumulated )
capital losses
P e R S Rupgas ...........................
400,000,000 (820,033,423) (520,033,423)
{197.540,748) (197,540,748)
- 6,495,813 6,485813
- (191,044,935) (191,044 ,935)
400,000,000 (1,111,078,358) (711,078,358)
(24,176.822) (24.176.822)
5717202 5 717.202
(18,459,620) (18,459,620)
1,200,000,000 - 1,200,000,000
- (13,302 ,475) (13,302,475)
1,600,000.000 51 !142.340.4531 45?.159E54?'
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ALFALAH SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ (loss) for the year before taxation and levy

Adjustments far:
Depreciation
Amartisation
Charge for retirement benefil obligation
Mark-up on:
Leng-lerm loan
Short-term running finance faclliity
Diminishing Musharakah
Financial charges on lease liabllily agains! right-ol-use assals
Allowance for expected credit losses
Capital gain on sale of investmenis
Unrealised appreciation on re-measurament of invesimants
classified as financial assels 'al falr value through profit or loss' - net
Loss / {gain) on disposal of properly and equipmeni
Cither Income
Dividend income
Movemant in working capital

Dacrease f (increase) in current assels
Trade recelvables - nst

Loans and advances - nal

Deposiis, prepayments and other recaivables

(Decrease) f Increase in current llabilities
Trade and olher payables

Net cash generatad from operalions

Taxes recovered / {paid)

Levy paid

Graluily pald

Financial charges paid

Met cash (used In} / generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property and equipment

Acquisition of intangible assels

Invesimenls made - nel

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Dividend received

Met cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Leasze rentals paid during the year

Amaoun| recgived against issuance of shares

Transaclion cosl pertaining to righl lssue

Short-term running finance facility - nel

Financing obtained against Diminishing Musharakah - net
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Met Increase f (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed noles 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements,

=

e,

Chief E‘ﬁra&ti;e Officer Ghiaf\s'rf‘lhnclai Oficer
|

Hote

27
27

27

29
17.4

14.3

33

2024 2023
(Restated)
---------------- Rupees ssecsssssisiamnnaa
12,184,405 (168,784,383)
35,223,642 33,136,207
725,008 703,212
4,338,340 12,781,668
58,308,571 59,519,178
96,232,687 116,106,343
4,778,980 5,388,788
1,806,335 1,963,432
80,950,656 14,557,712
{114,237,573) (35,763,808)
(43,606,150) {28,264 936)
850,237 {55400
(526,163} -
(1,902,853) (315,500)
143,226,022 10,972,323
80,054,708 17,342,761
8,985,303 5287 122
290,633,920 (127,452, 708)
387,574,030 (104,862 825)
(526,461,493) 510,776,647
4,338,559 416,886,145
1,376.326 {18,888,224)
(45,737,157} {28,756,165)
(8,152,400} (3.071,250)
186,709.823 {170 587,165)
(232,884,501) 195,583,041
{247,088) {12,245,095)
{859,750) 1,779,000
231,972,573 35,763,808
- 55,400
1,902 953 315,500
232,068,688 22,110,703
(16,230,175) (29.314,277)
1,200,000,000 -
{13,302,475) .
{372,579.184) {241,657.338)
(12,883,070) (5, 368,561)
785,005,006 (258,340,2386)
784,180,283 [50,846.,492)
512,335,768 562,882,251

g )
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ALFALAH SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1
1.4

1.2

1.3

2.1

22

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Alfalah Securities (Private) Limited (formerly Alfalah CLSA Securities (Private) Limlted) (the Company) was incorporated
in Pakistan under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1884 [(now the Companles Act, 2017) (the Act)] on 23 Seplember
2003 as a private limited company. The Company commenced its operations on 25 March 2004. The Company has a
Trading Right Entittement Cerlificate (TREC) of Pakistan Slock Exchange Limited and is also a corporate member of
Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited.

The principal activilies of the Company include shares and commeodities brokerage, money markel and foreign exchange
brokerage and advisory and consulling services.

The Gompany is 8 subsidiary of Bank Alfalah Limited which owns 85.58% (2023: 62.5%) shares of the Company.
The geographical Iocations and addresses of the Company's branches are as under:

- #4th Floor, Block 1, Shafl Courl, Plol Mo, CL 5/6-1, Clvil Lines, Karachl,

- Room No. 70, 15! Floor, Stock Exchange Building, Stock Exchange Road, Karachi,

- Suite No. 314, 3rd Floor, ISE Tower, Jinnah Avenue, Blug Area, Islamabad. _

- Suite No. 1, 2 & 3, Mezzanine Floor, LSE Plaza, North Tower, 18, Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-lqbal Road, Lahore.
B07, 6th Flaor, Kohislan Tawer, Mall Road, Saddar Canit., Rawalpindl.

During the year, an Extraordinary Gensral Meeting of the shareholders was called on 18 March 2024 lo Increase lha
authorised share capital of the Company from Rs, 1,600 million te Rs. 3,400 million with an objecfiva to inject addilional
capital to comply with the requlatory requirements with respact to nel worth, liquid capilal balance, asset under cuslody &
client asset segregalion and for sirengthening the financial standing and smoothening of the operations of the Company.
The Board of Direclars of the Company passed a resolution through circulation on 9 April 2024 lo increase the paid-up
capital of the Company by Rs. 1,200 million by issulng right shares. In this regard, subsequenl to passing of resolulion,
the requlatory requirements for Increasing Ihe paid-up share capital of the Company were fulfiled and the Parent
Company subscribed the entire right issue of Rs. 1,200 million. On 30 April 2024, the Company received Rs. 1,200
milion in ils bank account and shares were issued to the Parent Company on 10 May 2024. The equily Injection
increased the Company's net worth which Is now in compliance with the minimum nel worth requirement of Rs 75 million
and Rs. 10 milllon as per regulation 6{1A)} of the Securilies Brokers (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016 and
regulation 7 of Fulures Brokers (Licensing and Operalions Regulations), 2018 respeclively. Further, Il improved the
Company's liquid capital balance, which is also in compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirement of Rs 10
million to be maintained al all times in accordance with the requirements of regulation G{4) of the Securilies Brokers
{Licensing and Cperations) Regulations, 2016.

During the current year, the sponsor shareholder of the Company, Bank Allslah Limited, has enlered Into a Share
Purchase Agreement (SPA) with an entity for disposal of its shares in Alfalah Securities (Privale) Limited. The execulion
of tha SPA Is dependant on compliance of carlain condilions as mentioned in the SPA which will be complied post 31
December 2024. As, the SPA, represents a fransaction carrled out by the sponsors in their individual capaclly, it does nof
have any impact on the measuremen! of assels and liabilities in these financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Staternent of compliance

These financial stalements have been prepared In accordance with the accounting and reporling slandards as applicable
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporiing slandards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- Internaticnal Financial Reperting Standards (IFRS Accounting Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Slandards Board (1ASB) as nolified under the Companles Act, 2017,

- provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- the Securilies Brokers (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2018,
Where provisions of and direclives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 and the Securilies Brokers (Licensing and

Operations) Regulations, 2016 differ from the IFRS Accounting Standards, the provisions of and direclives issued under
ihe Companies Acl, 2017 and lhe Securilies Brakers (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016 have been followed,

Standards, Interprelations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are effective In the
current year:

There are certain standards, amendmenis and nterpretations thal are mandalory for the Company’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 bul are considered nol lo be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the
Company's operations and are, therefore, not disciosed in these financial statements.

Aitee.
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28

2
Standards, Interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effactive:

The following new amendments will be effeclive from the dates menlioned balow against the respactive amendmen:

Effactiva date
{acecounting periad
Standard and amendments beginning on or after)
- Ihe new standard - IFRS 18 - 'Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statemenis’ (New) 1 January 2027
- amendments to IFRS 7 'amendments o IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures' 1 January 2028
- amendments lo IFRS 9 'Financial Instrumenis' 1 January 2026
- 1AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rales' (amendments) 1 January 2025

The management is in the process of assessing the impact of these amendments on the financial stalements of the
Company.

There are certain ather new standards, amendments and inlerprefalions thal are mandatery for the Company's
accounling periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2025, Howevar, these will nal have any significan! impact on the
Company’s financial reporting and, therefore, have not been detailed In lhese financial staiements.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convenlion, except for cerain investments
wihich are carried at fair values and liability lowards defined benefil plan which is stated at present value of defined
benefit abligalion less fair value of plan assets, if any.

Func¢tional and presentation currency

ltems included in these financial sialements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates. These financial statements are presenied in Pakistanl Rupess, which Is the Company's
funclional and presentation currency.

Critical accounting estimatos and judgments

The preparalion of the financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable In
Pakistan requires management to make judgments, eslimates, and assumptions thal affect the reported amounts of
assels, liabililies, income and expenses. Il also requires the management to exercise ils judgment in application of its
accounting policies. The estimates and assecialed assumptions are based on historical experiences and various other
factors thal are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These gstimales and assumptions are reviewed on
an engaing basis. Revision to accounling esfimates are recognised in the year in which the estimates are ravised if the
revision affecls only (hat year, or in the year of revision and fulure years if the revision affects both current and fulure
years. Significant accounting eslimales and areas where judgments were made by the management in the applicalion of
the accounting policies are as follows:

eslimalion of useful lives and residual values of propery and equipment (nates 3.1 and 4);
estimation of useful lives of intangible assels (noles 3.2 and 5);
- provision for current and deferred taxation (notes 3.7, 8 and 29);
+  lease liability and right-of-use assets (noles 3.3, 4 and 18);
classification, valuation and impairment of financial assets (noles 3.5.1.1, 3.5.1,2, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12); and
provision for retirement benefits (notes 3.4 and 17),

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the preparaiion of these financial stalements are set out below. These have
keen consistently applied to all the years presented, except the following:

a) Interpretation on IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes

During the year, the Inslitule of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) has withdrawn the Technical Release 27 "IAS
12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)" and has issued a Guidance - "IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for
Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes", The said Guidance requires taxes paid under final tax regime to be shawn saparately
as a levy instead of showing il in current tax.

Accordingly, effective from 1 January 2024 the Company has changed its accounting policy fo recognise such faxes as
levies' which were previously beéing recognised as ‘income lax'. This change has been accounted far relrospectively in
line wilth the requirements of IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Ascounling Eslimales and Errers” and ihe
corresponding figures in the statement of profit and loss and other comprahensive income and slatement of cash flows
have been restated.

Aree,
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3.2

3

EFFECT ON THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
Had there been no Impact of changa in After incorporaling
thil:l.it in ) accounlig poliy effects of changeIn
accounting policy accounling policy
Humes .......................................
For the year ended 31 December 2024
Levy = lax on dividends on invesimenis and
minimum tax on institutional brokerage - (45,737,157) (45,737,157}
Profit / {loss) for the year before taxation 12,164,405 (45,737,157) (33,572,752)
Taxalion (36,341,227) 45,737,167 9,395,830
Profil for the year after taxalion (24,176,822) - (24.176.822)
For the year ended 31 December 2023
Levy - tax on dividends on investments and
minimum tax on institutional brokerage - (28,766,365) (28,7566,3563)
Less for the year before laxalion (168,784,383) (28,7566,365) (197,540,748)
Taxalion (28,756,365) 28,756,165 -
Loss for the year (197.540,7480) - (197.540,748)

The refated changes to the statement of cash flows with respect lo the amount of profit before taxation have been made
as well. There is no impact on profif after taxation and the statement of financial posilion.

Property and equipment

These are stated af cost lass accumulated depreciation and accumulaled impairment losses, if any, excepl for capilal
work-in-progress which is sialed al cosi less accumulated impairment losses, if any, The cosl of an item of properly and
equipment camprises of ils purchase price and any directly allribulable costs of bringing the asset lo werking condition
for its inlended use.

Depreciation on properly and equipment is calculated using the siraight line melhod in accordanceo with the rates
specified in note 4 to these financial stalements after laking inlo account residual values, if significanl. The assels’'
residual values, useful lives and deprecialion method are reviewed and adjusted, if significant, at each reporling date.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the date the assel is available for use. For any disposal. depreciation Is
charged fill the dale of disposal.

Subsequent cosls are included in the assel's carrying amounls or recognised as a separale assel, as appropriate, only
when it s probable thal fulure economic benefils associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of ihe
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance expenditures are charged to the Slalement of profit or
loss as and when incurred.

Intangible assets

Intangible assels having an indefinite useful Iife are stated at cost less accumulated impalrment Iosses, if any. An
intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinile useful fife, when, based on an analysis of all the relevant faclors,
lhere is no foreseeable limil to the period over which assel is expecled to generate net cash inflows for the Company.
An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is nol amertised. However, the carrying amouni is reviewed at each
reporting date or whenever thera is an indication that the asset may be impalired, to assess whelther il s in excess of iis
recoverable amount, and where the carrying value exceeds the estimaled recoverable amount, it is wiilten down o ils
estimated racoverable amouni. '

Intangible assels having a finile useful life are staled al cost less accumulated amorisalion and accumulzted
impairment losses, if any. Such infangible assels are amorlised using the siraight-line method taking inlo account
residual values, if significant, al the rates specified in note 5.1 to lhese financial stalemenls. The usefu) lives, assets’
residual values and amortisallon method are reviewed and adjusled, if significant, at each reporting date.

Amortisalion on addilions is charged from the dale the intangible is available for use. For any dispasal, amortisalion is
charged lill the date of dispesal,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assel are measured as lhe difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amoun! of the assel and are recognised In the stalement of profit or loss when the
assel is derecognised.
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Right-of-use assets and their related leaso liability

At inceplion of a coniract, the Company assesses whelher a conltracl is, or coniains, a lease based on whether the
conlrac! conveys the right e cantrol the use of an identified assel for a perlod of lime in exchange for consideration.

In determining the lease term, managemenl considers all facls and circumstances that creale an economic incentive to
axercise an extension oplion or nol lo exercise a lerminalion oplion. Exlension options {or periods afler termination
aplions) are anly included in the lease term if lhe lease is reasonably certain to be extended {or nol terminated).

The lease liabilily is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments over the period of lease term and thal
are nol paid at the commencemenlt date, discounted using the inlerest rale Impliclt in the lease, or if (hal rale cannot be
readily delermined, using the Company's incremenlal borrowing rale.

Lease paymenis include fixed payments less any lease incentive receivable, variable lease payment that are based on
an index or a rale which are Inifially measured using the index or rale as al lhe commencement date, amounts expected
to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees, he exercise price of a purchase option If the Company
is reasonably cerain lo exercise that option and payments of penallies for terminating the lease if the \sase larm reflents
Ihal the lessee will exercise thal option. The extenslon and terminalion oplions are incorporated in determination of
lease lerm only When the Company is reasonably certain o exercise (hese oplions.

The lease liabllily is subsequenlly measured sl amorlised cost using the effective interest rate method. The lease
liabilily is also remeasured lo reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or to refleet revised in-substance fixed
lease payment.

The leaze [iabilily is remeasured when lhe Company reassesses the reasonable ceriainly lo exercise extension or
lerminalion oplion upen occurrence of elther a significanl event or a significant change in circumslances, or when there
is a change in assessment of an option to purchase an underlying assel, or when there is a change in amounl expected
lo be payable under a residual value guarantee, or when there Is a change in fulure lease payments resulling from a
change in an index or rale used lo delermine those payments. The corresponding adjusiment is made to the carrying
amounl of the righl-of-use asset, or is recorded in the stalement of profil or loss if the carrying amount of right of use
assel has been reduced to zero.

When there is a change in scope of a lease, or Ihe consideration for a lease, that was not part of the original terms and
condilions, the same is accounted for as a lease modificalion. The lease modification is acoounted for as a separate
Isase il modificalion increases the scope of lease by adding the right-lo-use one or mere underlying aseets and lhe
consideralion for lease increases by an amount thal is commensurate with the standalone price for the increasa in
scope adjusled to reflecl the circumslances of the parficular conlract, if any. When the lease modification is not
sccounted for as a separale lease, the lease |iability is remeasured and corresponding edjusiment is made 1o right-of-
use asset.

The right-of-use assel is inilially measured at an amount equal lo the initial measurement of lease lisbility adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencemeant date, plus any initfal direct cosls incurred and an estimale of
the cosls to be incurred to dismantle and remove the underlying assel or lo reslore the underlying assel or the sile on
which the assel is localad.

The right-of-use asset is subsequantly measured at cosl less accumulaled depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The right-of-use assel is depreciated using the straighl line methed In accordance wilh the rates specified
In note 4 lo these financial statements and after taking into account residual values, if any.

Employees® relirement benefits

The Company operales an unfunded gratuity scheme for all ils permanenl employees who have completed the
prescribed qualifying period of service. Provision in respact of gratully costs is recorded bassd on acluarial
recommendalions. The actuarial valuation is caried ou! using the Projecled Unil Credit method, In accordance with JAS
18 Employee Benefits, remeasurements arising as a resull of actuarial valuations, are recorded In olher comprahensive
income in he period in which these occur.

Financial instruments
Financlal assets
Classification and subsequent measuremant

The Company classifies ils linancial asseis in the following measurement calegories |n accordance wilh the
requiremenis of IFRS 9:

- at amorised cosl;
- al fair value lhrough other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and
- al fair vafue through profit or loss (FWPL)

Mt
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The classification requirements for deb! and equily insiruments are described below:
(I} Debtinstruments

Debt instruments are those instruments [hat meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer's perspective, such
as loans, government and corporale bonds and putlable instruments like units of open-ended mutual funds.

Classificalion and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:

- the Company’s business model for managing the assel; and
- the cash flow characlerislics of the assel,

Based on these faclors, the Company classifies its debt instruments in one of the following three measurement
calegories:

a} Atamortised cost

Assels that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest (8PP, and that are not designated al FVPL, are measured at amorfised cost, The camying
amounl of these assets is adjusted by any expecied credil loss allowance recognised and measured as described in
note 3.5.1.2.

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVQCI)

Financial assets thal are held for colleciion of contraclual cash flows and far selling lhe assets, where lhe assels’
cash flows represenl solely paymenis of principal and interest, and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured
al fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
olher comprehensive income (OCI), excepl for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, recognised and
measured as described in nole 3.5.1.2, inlerest revenue and forelgn exchange gains and losses on the instrument's
amortised cost which are recognised in ihe stalemenl of profil or loss. When the financial assel is deracognised, the
cumulalive gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive ingome (OCI) is reclassified from surplus on
remeasurement of financial assels lo the slalement of profit or loss,

¢) Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

Assels that do nol meet the criteria for classificalion al amorised cost or FVOCH are measured at fair value (hrough
profil or loss. A gain or loss on a debl investment that s subsequently measured at fair valus through profit or loss
and is not part of a hedging relalionship is recognised in the statement of profil or loss in the period in which it
arises.

{il} Equity instruments

Equily instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the Issuer's perspeclive and are insiruments
Ihat do nol contain a contractual cbligation to pay and thal evidence a residual interest in the Issuer's nel assals.

Al equily investiments are required o be measured in the statement of financlal position al fair value, with gains and
losses recognised in the statement of profil or loss, excep! where an irrevocable election has been made at the time of
inilial recognilion (o measure the investiment al FYQCH,

The dividend income for equity securities classified under FVOCI are to be recognised in the slatement of profit or loss.
However, any surplus / {(deficil) arsing as a result of subsequent movement in the fair value of equily securities
classified as FVOCI Is to be recognised in other comprehensive income and is nol recycled fo the statement of profit or
logs on derecognition.

3.5.1.2 Impairment

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associaled with ils debl instrumen
agsels carried el amortised cost and FVOC! and trade recelvables. The Company recognises a loss allowance for such
losses al each reporing date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

- An unbiased and probabilily-weighted amount that is determined by evalualing a range of possible outcomas;
- The fime value of money; and

- Reasonable and supporlable informalion thal is available without undue cost or effort al the reporting date about
pasl evenls, current conditions and forecas!s of fulure economic condilions.

Arer,
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The Company considers lhat a financial assel is in defaull when the counterparly fails to make confraciual payments
within ninety days of when they fall due. Further, financial assels are wrilten off by the Company, in whole or parl, when
it has exhausted all practical recovery efforls and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

3.5.1.3 Derecognition

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecegnised when the contraciual righls to receive the cash flows from the
assels have expired, or when they have been lransferred and either:

(i) the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership; o

{ii} the Company neilher transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Company has
not relained confral.

3.5.1.4 Regular way contracls

3.5.2

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assels are recognised on the lrade date i.e. the date on which fthe
Company commils {o purchase or sell the assel. Regular way purchases / sales of assets require delivery of securities
within two days from the lransaction dale as per the slock exchange regulations.

Financial Habilities

Financial liabililies are Inilially recognised at fair value plus transaclion costs and are subsequently measured at
amontised cost excepl for financial liabilities at fair value through profil and loss.

3.5.2.1 Derecognition

3.5.3

3.5.4

3.55

Financial lizbilities are derecognised al tha lime when these are exlinguished Le. when the obligalion specified in the
contract Is discharged, canceiled or expires. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial liabilities is taken to the
statement of profit or loss,

Initial racognition

Financial assets and financial llabilllies are recognised at the time the Company beceomes a parly lo the conlraciual
provisions of the instrument. These are Initially recognised al fair value plus lransaclion costs excepl for financial assels
carfied at fair value through profil or loss. Financial assels carded al fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised al falr value and transaction costs assaciated with these financial assels are laken directly to the statemenl
of profit or loss.

Offsetting of finanelal assets and financial llabilities

Financial assels and financlal liabllities are offsel and the net amaunt is reported In the financial statemenis whan there
is @ legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounis and there is an intenlion 1o setlle on a net basls, or lo
realise the assels and setlle the liabilities simullaneously.

Businass model

The Company determines its business modsl al the level lhal besl reflecls how it manages groups of financial assels to
achiave ils business objective.

The Company's business model 15 nol assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but al a higher level of
aggregated porifolios and Is based on obsenvable faclors such as:

- How Ihe parformance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated
and reported to the Company's board/ board commitlees;

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the linancial assets held within that business
model) and, in parlicular, the way those risks are managed: and

- The expecied frequency, value and liming of sales are also imporiant aspecls of the Campany’s assessment.

The buginess mode! assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios withoul taking “worsl case' or 'streas case'
scenarios into account. If cash flows afler initial recognilion are realised In a way that is ditferent from the Company’'s
onginal expeclalions, the Company dozs nol change the classification of Ihe remaining financial assels held in thal
business modeal, but incorporates such Information whén assessing newly originaled or newly purchased financial
assels going forward,

Ates,




3.5.8

387

3.6

3.7

374

34

3.9

Solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)

Where the business model Is lo hold assels to collect coniraciual cash Nows or 1o collect contraciual cash flows and
sell, the Company assesses whelher the financial instruments' cash flows represen! solely payments of princlpal and
interes! (the “SPFI tesl’). In making this assessmenl, the Company considers whether the confractual cash flows are
consislent with a basic lending arrangemenl i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of maney, credil
risk, other basic lending risks and a profil margin thal is consisten! wilth a basic lending arrangement. Where the
contraciual terms infroduce exposure lo risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the
relaled financial asset is classified and measured al falr value through profit or loss,

Reclassifications

The Company reclassifies debl invesiments when and only when ils business maodel for managing those assels
changes. The reclassificalion takes placa fram the starl of the first reponiing peried following the change. Such changes
are expected lo be very infrequent and none occurred during the year,

Naon-financlal assets

The carrying amount of the assels is reviewed al each reporting date lo determine whether there Is any indication of
impairment loss, If such indication exisis, the carrying amounts of such assels are reviewed lo assess whether they are
recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carrying values excesd the respective recoverable amounts,
assels are wrillen down to (heir recoverabls amounls and the resulling Impairment charge is recognised in the
statement of profil or loss.

Taxation
Current

Provision for currenl taxation is based on laxability of cerlain income sireams of tha Company under minimum tax
regime at Ihe applicable lax rales and remaining income streams chargeable at current rale of laxation under normal {ax
regime after taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, or on urnover at the specified rate or Allernale
Corporate Tax as defined In seclion 113C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whichever is higher. The charge for the
current tax also Includes adjustments where necessary, relaling to prior years which arise from assessments framed /
finalised during the current year.

Deferred

Deferred lax is recognised using the balance sheet liabllity method on all temperary differences srising betwesn ithe lax
bases of assels and liabilities and heir carrying amounts appearing in the financial stalements al the reporting date,
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all laxable lemporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deduclible temporary differences lo Ihe exlent that it is probable thal the lemporary differences will reverse in the fulure
and laxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be ulilised.

The carrying amounl of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporing dale and reduced to the exdent thal it Is no
longer probable hat sufficient laxable profit will be available to allew all ar part of the defarred tax assels to be ulilised.

Deferred lax assels and [labilities are measured at the tax rales thal are expecled to apply to lhe period when the asset
is realised or the liabilily is selllad, based on tax rates and tax laws 1hat have been enacted or substantially enacted at
the reporling date.

Levy

In accordance wilh Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (Ordinance), computation of final taxes is not based on taxable
income, Therefore, as per IAS 12 Applicalion Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes issued by
the Instilute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), these fall within the scope of International Financial Reporing
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 21 - ‘Levies' and accordingly have been classified as levy in these financial
statemenis.

Borrowings

These are inifially recognised al cost being the fair value of consideralion received. Subsequenlly, these are carried al
amorised cosl, Cosls in respecl of these are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which these are incurred,
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3.16.2

Payable against Diminishing Musharaka

Diminishing Musharaka is an lslamic financing arrangement where the Company and a counterpany joinlly purchase an
assel. Over time, the Company buys the counterparty's shars in the assel, evenlually obtaining full ownership.

At Inception, the asset acquired through Diminishing Musharaka is recognised al cost, which includes the amount paid
Lo acquire he asset jointly with the counterparly. Correspondingly, a liability is recognised for the counterparty’s share in
the assel, represenling the Company's obligation 10 purchase 1he counlerparly's share over lime,

The asset is depreciated over its useful life, consistenl with the Company's deprecialion policy for similar assets.
Depreciation bagins when the assel is available for use and continues uniil the asset is fully depreciated or disposed of,

The paymanis made to acquire the counterparly's share are apportioned between the reduction of the liability and
Interest expense. The interest component is recognised in the statement of profil or loss, reflecting the cost of financing.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a presenl legal or constructive obligalion as a result of past events, it
i= probable that an oulflow of resources embodying economic benefilts will be required lo sellle the obligalion and a
reliable esiimale can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed periodically and adjusted lo
reflect the current besl eslimates.

Deposits and other receivables

Deposils and other receivables are carried al amorlised cosl, less expacted credil loss allowance delsrmined in
accardance with note 3.5.1.2.

Trade and other payables

Liabililies for irade and olher payables are carried al cosl, which is the fair value of consideration to be paid in the fulure
for goods and services whelher or not billed to the Company.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, balances wilh banks in current and savings accounts and other
highly liguid shori-lerm invesiments with original malurilies of three months or less and bank overdrafts.

Revenue recognition
Brokerage and fee revenue

The Company earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of financial services it provides 1o its customers.
Fee and commission income is recognised at an amoun! thal reflects the consideration lo which the Company expecis
lo be entitled in exchange for providing lhe services.

The performance obligations, as well as the iming of thelr salisfaclion, are idenlified, and delermined, al the inception of
the conlracl. The Company's revenue conlracls do not typlcally include mulliple performance obligations.

When the Company provides a service lo its cuslomers, consideration is invoiced and generally due iImmediately upon
salisfaclion of a service provided at a point in time or at the end of lhe conlract period for a sepvice provided over fime.

The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenug arrangements because it typically conlrols
the services before transferring them lo the customer,

Fee and commigsion income from providing services where performance obligations are satisfied at a point in
time

Services provided where the Company's performance obligalions are salisfied at a point in time are recognised once
control of the services is fransierred to the customer. This is typically on completion of the underlying transaction or
service or, for fees or components of fees that arg linked to a cerain perdormance, after fulfilling the corresponding
performance criteria. These includa fees and commissions arising from negotiating or paricipating in lhe negofiation of
a lransaction for a lhird party, such as Ihe arrangemenbt/padicipation or negotiation of lhe acquisilion of shares or olher
securities, or the purchase or sale of businesses, brokerage and undenwriling fees.
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The Company lyplcally has a single performance obligalion wilh respect to these services, which is to successfully
complete Llhe lransaclion specified in the conlracl.

3.15.3 Fee and commissian incame from services where performance obligations arg satisfied over time

Performance cbligations salisfied over lime include assel management, custody and other services, where Lhe customer
simullaneously receives and consumas the benefils provided by the Company's performance as the Company performs.

The Company's brokerage and fee revenue does nol include significant services where performance obligations are
salisfied over fime.

3.15.4 Otherincome

318
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Interest income on financial assels (including margin financing) is recognised using the effeclive interest rate method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Gains [ losses arising on sale of fixed assels are included In the stalement of profit er l0ss in the period in which thay
arise,

Praposad dividends and transfers between reserves

Dividends declared and lransfers between reserves made subsequent to the reporfing dale are considered as non-
adjusling events and are recognised In the financial stalements in the year in which such dividends are declared /
transfers are made.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies ate translated into Pakistani Rupees al the foreign exchange rales prevalling on the
dale of irangaction. Monelary assets and liabililies in foreign currencies are (ranslated into Pakistani Rupees al the
exchange rales approximaling those at the stalement of financial position dale, Exchange gains [ losses resulting from
lhe selllement of ransactions and from the Iranslation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assels and liabililies
denominated in foreign currencies are taken lo the staterment of profil or loss

PROFPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2024
Futniture and || Computer Office Righbokuxa
Gillias iqul:ﬁwmnt saulpel Mator vehlcles Ea JT:I:gls Total
...... :Hupmj. r——
Asatd January 2024
Cost 26,675,188 32601915 17,834.849 39.982.000 455187863 182500745
Accumulated deprecialion (6.258,801) (21,687,058} (11.074,855) (7,605,313) (30,5958,759) (77.222086)
Net book value 20,315,297 10,904 857 6,759,824 32 376,687 14,920,024 85,277,758
i
Year ended 31 Decembar 2024
Opening net book value 20,316,207 10,904 857 6,759,804 32376687 14,520,024 85 277,769
Addilions - 695,318 251,770 - 44 064 701 45,011,789
Disposals
Cuosl (1.211,458) . - - (43, T27.640)) | (44,839,098}
Accumulaled depreciation J adjustmenl| 155,423 525,163 . - 43,088,602 || 43,770,268
(1,056,035) 526,163 - - 1638,958) {1,168,830)
Deprecialion charge for the year (2,649.563)  (4.979.133) (3.364.727) (5597.480) (18.632,738) (35.223642)
Closing nat book value 16,610,695 7,147,205 3,646,937 26779.207 35713028  53.857.076
As at 31 December 2024
Cost 25363740 33,287,233 18,086,618 39982000 45851844 162573436
Accumulaled dapraciation (B.753.041) (26,140.028) (14.439.682) (13.202.793) (6.140,816) (68.676.360)
Net book valua 16,610.693 7,147,205 3,645,937 26,779,207 30,713,028 93,497,076
Depreciation rate (¥, per annum} 10% 28%, 28%% 20% 1103 ysars
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As at 1 January 2023
Cosl

Accumulated depreciation
Nat book value

Year ended 31 Docember 2023
Opening nel book value
Additions
Dispnsals

Cost

Aecumulated depreciation

Depreciallon charge for he year
Closing net book value

As at 31 December 2023
Cost

Accumulated depracialion
Net book value

Dopraciation rate (% per annum)

10

2023
Fumilure and || Gomputer Office Mator mgliflt "'_" Tolal
fixtures squipment equipmant wehicles Bulldings
- {Hupgag] ......... — ———
23629615 28979670 16,426,624 34,982,000 45931271 151,009,180

(3,660.008) (16,926,491} (7,865703) (2,335,778) (19,9660886) (50,787 168)
19,999,307 13,051,178 8560021 32646222 25864385 100,232,014

19,999,307  13.051.172 8,560,921 32,646,222 25084385 100,222,014
2885583 2,951,287 1,408,225 5,000,000  £048,857 18,191,952
. (339,042) . = (6,361,345} | (6.700.387)

- 330,042 - - 6,361,345 6,700,387

!2.555.5’93! sgll)?? 603) _[3.200.252) (5,269.535) (16.991.218) (33,136,207)
20316207, 10909857 _ 675680 32376007 14520024 _B5.271.750.

26,575,198 32,591,915 17,834,849 39982000 458516,783 162,500,745

(6.258.501) [(21687.058) (11.074.955) _(7.605.313) (30,598,759} _(77.222 985)
20316207 10,904,857 5,760,884 92376687 14,820,024 85,277,758

il —25% . 20% . 20% _ _llo3vears

The aggregate net book value of disposals was nol in excess of Rs. 5 miilion during the year ended 31 December 2024,

Propery and equipment includes items costing Rs. 18.375 million (2023: Rs. 17.260 millien} which are fully depreclated
as of 31 December 2024 bul are still in active use of the Company.

The delalls of operaling fixed assets disposed off during the year are as follow:

: Aceumulated | Netbook Sale | Galn/{toss)| Modeol | Particulars of
Deseriptl i
tiplion Quanlity Cos dapracizlion vilua procexds | on disposal | dispesal | purchasers i s
ann Rupees -emn
Furniture and fiduras 1 912,858 56,477 856481 . (B56,481) Wrile off - -
Furniture and fidures 1 298,500 08,800 198,700 - {199,700) Write off . -
1e11,458 155, 1,056,181 - (1,066,181
_— —_—
Note 2024 2023
INTANGIBELE ASSETS P RRTATORE (- 1] -1-T-) [
Intanglbles 6.1 8,124,253 7,489,511
Capital work-In-progress 52 1,722,800 2,222 900
8,847,153 9712411
2024
TRE Cerificate - TRE Certificats -
Pakistan Slock Pakistan Mercantile
Compioranttnn® | | wonamguivinat | | Exchangetiniiod Tomud
{54.1) [5.4.3)
oo RUPEES Jrersa
As at1 January 2024
Cosl 9,873,312 4,926,170 3,500,000 18,299,482
Accumulaled amodisafion / impaitment [6.383,801) {2,426,170) - (10.809.971)
Net book valus 1!489 511 g g;g;:mn ilﬂr gg aoo0 T!dED 511
Year ended 31 December 2024
Opening nel book value 1,489,511 2,500,000 3,500,000 T.489.511
Additions 1,358,760 . - 1,369,750
Amorlisation for the year 725,008) - - {725,008)
Closing net book value 2=i24i2§; E 500,000 ;-iﬂ ggg g 1&&;;
As al 31 December 2024
Cost 11,233,062 4,926,170 3,600,000 19,669,232
Accumulated amerlisation f impairment {9,108,809) {2,425,170) - (11,534,579}
Net book value éiEdliﬁ. glﬁﬁ ﬂg 3,500,000 8,124 253
Amortisation rate (% per annum) 25%
—_————
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TRE Certilicate « TRE Cerilficate -
Paklstan Stock Pakistan Mercantilo
Computersaftuare | | oo opy o Limied Exchange Limlted Tod
(8.1.4) [543
...... - s Iﬂupgqq....,....-
As at 1 January 2023
Cosl 9,564,312 4926170 3,500,000 17,990,482
Accumulated amortisation f impairment (7,680.589) (2, 426,170) - (10,108,759)
Mel book value 1,383,723 2,500,000 3.500.000 7,883,723
Year ended 31 December 2023
Opening net book value 1,883,723 2,500,000 3,500,000 7,883,723
Additions 303,000 + ’ = 309,000
Amgrtisation for tho year {703,212) - - (703.212).
Closing net book value 1.489.511 2,500,000 3.600.000 7489511
As at 31 December 2023
Cost 9.873.312 4926170 3,500,000 18,299.482
Accumulated amortisation f impalrment (8,383.801) (2.426,170) - (10,808.971)
Net book value 1489511 2,500,000 3,500,000 7,489,511
Amaortization rate (% per annum) 2R

This represenls Trading Right Enlitlement Cerlificate (TREC) of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited pursuant to the
promulgation of Stock Cxchanges (Corporatisalion, Demulualization and Inlegralion) Acl, 2012,

This represents Trading Right Entillement Cerificate (TREC) of Pakisian Mercanlile Exchange Limited issuad in
accordancea with the Futures Market Act, 20186,

Intangible assets includes ilems costing Rs, 7.547 millien (2023: Rs. 7.027 million) which are fully amodised as al 31
December 2024 but are still in active use of the Company.,

Nota 2024 2023
capita' mrh.in.prugres; “Hu-muunniﬂupaa'lnuu.uu..u,...."
Advance 1o vendor 521 1,722,800 2,222,800
Movement of capital wark-In-progress
Opening as at 1 January 2,222,800 752,000
{Deletions} / additions during the year (500.000) 1,470.000
Closing as al 31 Decamber 1.722 800 2,222 800
LONG-TERM LOANS
Considarad good - unsacured
Loan to employees

Execulives - 687,605
Other employees 362,762 2,150,012
362,762 2837517
Consldared doubtful - unsecured
Loan o ex-CEO* 307,080 307,080
Loan to other employees 833,535 533,535
1,140,615 1,140,615
Less: provision againsl doubtiul emplavee loans 6.4 (1,140,615} (1,140,615)
6.2 362,762 2,837,517
Less: current maturity of long-term loans
Loan 1o ex-CEO" - B
Loan 1o employees (334.262) {2,465,513)
M {334,262) {2,465513)
28.500 372,004

* Durlng the year, {he ex-CEO was dismissed and his loan amount has been fully provided.

Aiter,
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These represent personal loans provided to employees of the Company as per the Company's policy. These loans carry
mark-up al the rale of 1 month KIBOR + 1% (2023: 1 month KIBOR + 1%) and are repayable in equal monthly
installments over a period of two years lhrough deduclions from salary.

Reconciliation of loans to execulives and olher 2024 2023
employees of the Company is as follows: O | 1T -1 1) Eo——
As at 1 January 2.837 517 2,758,908
Loans disbursed during the year 226,000 4,385,000
Loans repatd during the year {2,700,755) (4,288,391}
As al 31 Dacamber 362,762 2,837,517

The maximum aggregale amount dus from the employees al the end of any month during the year was Rs. 3.646 million
(2023 Rs. 5.016 million).

2024 2023
Mowvement in provision against doubtful employee loans: e (2 L1211 SRR ERIRREES
As al 1 January 1,140,615 811,072
Charge for the year . 329,543
Reversals made during the year - .
As at 31 December 1,140,615 1,140,615

* During the year, the ex-CEQ has been dismissed and his loan amoun! has been fully provided as doubtful,

Note 2024 2023

LONG-TERMDEPOSITS spesmessemsemseea [RUREES)emesnsesasssimmns
Deposils with:

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 100,000 100,000

Mational Clearing Company of Pakistan Limiled 1,400,000 1,400,000

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 74 13,810,000 13,210,000

Pakistan Marcantile Exchange Limiled 1,381,353 761,043

Other security deposits 878,000 857,970

17,369,253 16,320,013

This represents amounl deposiled with Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) on account of Base Minimum Capital
requirement prescribed by PSX and is in addilion to the shares of PSX as mentienad in note 10.2 to these financial
slatements. This deposit carries mark-up f inlerest at the rate as determined by the Exchange.

DEFERRED TAXATION - HET 2024 2023
RERTCETEREEEEER | {07 . T.1-T-1 FPEep——
Deferred tax assets arising on deductible temporary differences
Property and equipment 300,110 -
Intangible assels 89,277 119,811
Lease liability against right-of-use assels 9,742,280 1,356,810
Retirement benefil obligation 10,302,994 7.005,108
Payable agains! Diminishing Musharaka 8,693,861 5,690,630

29,028,532 15,172,459
Deferred tax labilities arising on taxable temporary differences

Properly and equipment - 1,456,413
Investment in securities 9,745,784 "
Right-of-use assels 11,516,778 4,326,807
Motor vehicles under Diminishing Musharaka 7,765,870 9,380,239
29,028,532 16,172,458
Deferred tax asset - g

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset

Deferred lax asset / {liability) as at 1 Jan . -
Recognised in the statement of profil or loss - -
Recognised in other comprehensive income - -
Defarred 1ax assel / (liability) as at 31 December - =

M.



8.2

8.2

13

As at 31 December 2024, the Company has aggregate lax Iosses amounting to Rs 356.352 million in respecl of
business losses for prior years, This Includes business losses for tax years 2022 and 2023 aggragaling to Rs 161,522
million. The Company is in proces of filing the revised lax relurns due to restatements of financial stalements of the
Company for (he years 2023, 2022 and 2021, The Company has opted for recognising deferred tax assel on deduciible

lemporary differences only to the extent of {axable lemporary differences.

Note 2024 2023

TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET rmesesn ] {Rupees)-smsssimee..
Censldered good
Receivable from cliznls against purchase of markelable securities - secured 235,183,070 307,820,788
Money markel brakerage receivable - unsecured §7,333,793 39,787.871
Forex brokerage receivable - unsecurad 1,670,734 970,853

294 087,597 348,879,712
Recalvable from Nalional Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited - 116,313,338

284,087,687 464,983,061
Considered doubtiul
Receivable from clignts againsl purchase of markeiable securilies 1,233,269,033 1,166,870,368
Money market brokerage recelvable 6,885,875 2.420,075
Forex brokerage receivable 8.898 8,658
Olhers 3,162,832 3,152,832

1,243,318,738

1,172,451,934

Less: Provision against doubHul trade recelvables 85 {1,243,316,738) (1,172.451,934)
9.1 204,087,507 464,993 051
The ageing analysis of irade receivables is as follows: 2024
Gross || Provisien || Mot
r...-......---......----..-...{Rupees] ----------- e ———
Up to 5 days 215,335,125 {4,702,425) 210,632,700
More than 5 but up lo 14 days 11,413,544 (232,305) 11,181,239
More than 14 bul up o 30 days 4,710,636 (108,743) #,603,893
More than 30 but up lo 60 days 24,419,642 (1,732,883) 22,686,779
iere than 60 bul up to 90 days 7.397.008 (819,043) 6,778,055
More than 90 days but up lo 365 days 27,283,885 (2,727,033) 24,656,853
More than 365 days* 1,246,844 404 {1,233 1986,328) 13,648,078
1.55?'454.335 51:.243‘ ,T.’!B! 204,087 597
2023
Gross || Provision || Met
.-..............,..........-....{Hupnu} ........ A b e S ———
Up lo 5 days 280,575,010 (1,587,367) 288,977,643
More than 5 but up lo 14 days 30,677,180 (528,487) 30,347,633
Maore than 14 bul up to 30 days 15,024,751 (178,532) 14,916,213
More than 20 bul up to 60 days 61,220,745 (4,633,201) 56,598,544
More than &0 bul up to 90 days 8,065,974 (1,363,259) 6,702,685
More than 80 days but up to 2685 days 14,664,856 (3,308,114) 11,556,842
More than 365 days® 1,216,737,388 1,160.841,844 55,805,425
1!E3T!444!935 1,172,451,934 451!993.051
*lhis includes balances whose aging have been moved to highest category as lhese balances were rolled over
histarically,
MNote 2024 2023
This includes amounis due from relaled parlies as follows: cevinmenrmrsmnnras | RUPBES)nnssnnannanisnnsn
Key Management Personnel 2,053,202 -
Other related parties and assoclated undertakings 5,722,354 872,378
9.4 7,775,557 872,375
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The maximum aggregate amount due from related parfies al the end of any month during the year was Rs. 63.822
million (2023: Rs. 426.456 million ).

The aging analysls of amounts due from relaled 2024
paries and associated underiakings is as follows: Gross || Provision || Nat
N AT T=T -y e
Upto 5 days 1,732,653 (41,236) 1,691,417
More than 5 bul up o 14 days 2,949178 (88,812} 2,880,363
More than 14 bul up 1o 30 days : x -
More than 30 buf up to 60 days 1,614,634 (475,183) 1,138,451
More than 80 buf up to 90 days 1,261,562 (1,197,236) 64,326
More than 20 days bul up 1o 365 days 2,905,636 {2,805,636) -
More than 385 days 14,038,136 (12.038,138) 2,000,000
24,501,797 (16.726.239) 7.775.557
2023
Gross || Provision || Nat |
............................. (RUPEES]susssrsatnseasaaranmssiasanain
Up to 5 days 456,160 - 456,160
More than 5 but up to 14 days 183,155 . 183,158
More than 14 bul up to 20 days 67,646 - 67,646
Maore than 30 but up to 60 days 163,701 - 163,701
More than 60 bul up lo 90 days 623 - 623
More fhan 90 days but up lo 365 days 42 - 42
More than 365 days 425,564,300 (425,583,253) 1,048
426,456,627 {425,583,252) B72,375
2024 2023
Provision against doubtfuldebts e [RUpgeg)--—emee e
Ag al 1 January 1,172,451 934 1,161,268,765
Charge for the year 80,950 658 11,183,169
Whitten off during the year {10,085,852) -
As at 31 Decamber _1,243,316,738 1,172,451 ;91

The walue of customers’ assets held in the Ceniral Depository System by the Company and maintained in the
Company's sub-accounts as al 31 December 2024 amounts lo Rs. 6,783.178. million (2023: Rs. 5.680.043 milllon).

INVESTMENTS 2024 2023
-...“".,...-....[Rupggg] .................
Financial assets at 'fair value through profit or loss'
- Quoted equity securities 52,806 940 136,835,796
Humber of shares :
Purchaged Asatdl Pereentage | Carrying valee| Marketvilue u“::'::d
Compaiy nama Asatl | bonusissued | Sold during Do:l:tibl! of equity st asal i rem:atmmm
January 2024 durhl‘:g'ma the year 2434 held  |December 2024 Decamber 2024 for T year
(Rupees)
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limiled 1,902,953 - - 1,902953  0.24% 19,200,796 52.806.24% 33,808,150
First Matlonal Equilies Limited 23500000 - 23500000 B - B - .
Agritech Limited - 16,762,500 16,762,500 x - - +
Total as at 31 December 2024 19,200,796 52,806,946 33,606,180
Tolal as at 31 December 2023 108,670,860 136,935.795 28,264 936

The shares of PSX were allolled fo the Company pursuant to the promulgation of Slock Exchanges (Corporalisalion,
Demulualization and Integration) Act, 2012. These shares have been pledged wilh CDC in order lo comply wilh the
Base Minimum Capital requiremenl prescribed by the PSX.

e
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Note 2024 2023
LOANS AND ADVANCES - NET cevnescssmraine e[ RUPBEE fernnsrsnnsrannan =
Considered good - unsecured
Currenl maturity of long-term loans 6 334,262 2465513
Advance to employees 11.1 25,000 4,203,018
Advance to suppliers 268,602 801,222
527,954 7.269,753
Considered doubtful - unsecured
Advance to employees 3,404,768 3,404,768
Less: provision against doublful advances ; 11.2&11.3 (3,404,768) (3,404,768)
627,854 7,269,753

The advances lo employees are given lo meet personal and travelling expenses, These are granted to employees of the
Company in accordance with iheir terms of employment and are racovered through deductions from salaries / against
expense selflements.

2024 2023
Provision against doubtful advances wtrananesnarrnnien| RUPEES) raerenssmrnnnncs
As at 1 January 3.404.768 458,173
Charge for the year . 3,045,000
Reversal during the year - {86.405)
As al 31 December 3,404,768 3,404,768
During the year, the ex-CEQ was dismissed and his loan amount has been fully provided as doubtful,
Note 2024 2023
DEPOSITS, PREFAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES T | 3111 o1 F T Rea——
Exposure deposils with National Clearing Company of
Pakistan Limited 12.1 4,478,685 287,304,797
Prepayments
Prepald fees 945,407 1,594,913
Prepald IT service level agreements 3,586,819 3,700,262
Prepaid insurance 24,083 208,310
Prepaid others 835,002 807,441
5,381,291 6,308,926
Other receivables
Accrued mark-up on exposure depasits with NCCPL 1,220,306 1,549,328
Accrued mark-up on bank deposils 588,505 204,515
Advisory fee receivable 12.2 2,188,995 2,789 9495
Others 4,316,085 2,301,575
8,014,891 6,845,413

18,784 867 310,459,136
This represenls deposils held al the year end agalnsl exposures arising out of trading in securilies in accordance with
the regulations of lhe Pakistan Slock Exchange Limited (the Exchange). Interest is sarned on the deposit at rates as
determined by the Exchange.

This includes an amount receivable fram Bank Alfalah Limited (a related parly) amounting to Rs. 1.585 milion (2023:
Rs. 1.585 million). The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 1.595
million (2023: Rs. 1.585 million),

2024 201
The aging analysis of receivable from the related party is as follows: T | {17511 PO —
Nat pas! due = -
Past due more than one year 1,584,995 1,584,005
1,504,295 1,584 985

Ates,
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Naota 2024 2023
CASH AND BANK BALANCES  eerceeenems ~{RUPEES)- rmmssreersmsrsans
Cagsh in hand 25,086 100,924
Cash al banks in
- Current accounis 134 810,822 622 162,427,698
- Savings accounts 1228133 485,577,334 349,807,136
13.4 1,206,499,956 512,234,825

1,286,525.042 512,335,758
This includes an amounl of Rs. 36.001 million (2023: Rs. 139,984 milllon) mainlained with Bank Alfalah Limiled (a
related parly).

These include a balance of Rs. 3.103 million (2023: Rs, 3.541 million) maintained with Bank Alfalah Limited (a related
parly} thal carries mark-up at the rate of 13.50% to 20.5% (2023: 20.60%) per annum, Other savings accounts of the
Company with commercial banks, carry mark-up al the rates ranging from 10% to 20.50% (2023: 7.00% to 20.50%) per
annum.,

This includes an amount of Rs. 334 million mainlained in & Call Account with & cormmercial bank as securily against
loan and a lien is marked against the said amount,

This includes an amount of Rs. 797.473 millon (2023: Rs. 148.726 million) representing clients' funds. As required
under rule 4,17.1(a) of PSX Rule book, section 78 of the Securilies Act, 2015 and section 62 of the Fulures Markel Act,
2016 the Company is required to maintain in a separale account all customer assels received from the cuslomer or
accruing lo the cuslomer and not lo comingle those customer assets with the assets of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised share capital
2024 2023 2024 2023
----- --Number of shares---.-- B LT | (1] 111 B ——
340.000.000 150,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 3.4ﬁU!DDﬂ!ﬂUﬁ 1,500,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

2024 2023 2024 2023
=seumber of shares-«-.--— -.-.u-....----"-.."tﬂupqnsl ...... v
Ordinary shares of Rs, 10 each Issued
40,000,000 40,000,000  as fully paid in cash 400,000,000 400,000,000
Right shares of Re. 10 each issued
300,000,000 - as fully paid in cash 3,000,000,000 -
3,400,000,000 400,000,000
Less: Discounl on issue of right shares (1,800,000,000) -
340,000,000 40,000,000 1,600,000,000 400,000,000

The Company has paid fee of Rs. 13.302 million to the Securilies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
perlaining to increase in authorised share capllal during the year.

The share capital was issued, subscribed and paid-up by the following related parties of the Company:

[ 2024 I 2023 | 2024  |[ 2023 |

-------- Parcentage Holding--w-ss= sssescscecsNumber of shares....-eax
Bank Alfalah Limited 95.59% B2 .60% 324,995,912 24.808.812
CLSA BV 0.00% 24.00% - 8,880,000
Mr. Muhammad Aliuddin Ansari 4.16% Q.87% 14,158,761 3,248,761
Direclors 0.00% 0.00% 88 88
Others 0.25% 2.73% 841,238 1,081,238
340,000,000 40,000,000

Ao,
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Subsequent lo additional equily injection by Bank Alfalah Limited, CLSA BV decided lo exit from the business and
offered ils shares to existing shareholders of the Company under the provision of relevant seclions of the Campanies
Acl, 2017. Further, Mr. Muhammad Alluddin Ansari has acquired the shares from farmer key management personnel,
The lransfer of shares and refaled legal requirements are being completed.

Note 2024 2023
LONG-TERM LOAN e A1) +-1-r-) [ -
Long-term loan 15.1 300,000,000 300,000,000
Accruad mark-up 9,583,544 16,257,534
309,583,544 316,257,534
Less: current malurity of long-term loan (8,583,544) {316,257,534)

300,000,000 -
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company extendsd the maturily of long lerm loan for the period of 3
years. Mark-up on loan is payable on quarteriy basis and pringipal is repayable on malurily.

The loan is secured against lien of funds maintained in a Call Account with 8 commercial hank amounling lo Rs. 334
million with a 10% margin on the said amount. The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 1 year KIBOR minus 5.95%
(2023: 1 year KIBOR minus 2.23%) per annum and is due to mature in November 2027,

Note 2024 2023
PAYABLE AGAINST DIMINISHING MUSHARAKA B [ 11,1 1.1 M —
Payable against Diminishing Musharaka 1681 14,867 047 23,071,137
Less: current portion of payable against Diminishing Musharaka (4,486, 806) (4,691,874)
10,480 241 18,379,263

These represent Diminishing Musharaka Financing obtained from a Modaraba amounting to Rs. 22.3279 million (2023
Rs. 27.8B7 milllon). The financed amounl is secured by way of regislering the vehicles purchased from the amount
financed in the name of the Modaraba. These carry mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 2.5% per annum (2023
3 months KIBOR plus 2.5% per annum). These facilities are due lo mature latest by June 2028 (2023: June 2028).

2024 2023
Following is the movement in payable against Diminishing Musharaka: mmmemsnssensnns e QUDBES) ssssemmsssansanans
As al 1 January 22,071,137 23,050,910
Amount borrowed during the year - 3,500,000
Amount repaid during the year {8,104,090) (3,478,773)
As at 31 December 14,967,047 23,071,137

S ————§—— "~ "~
RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION
The Company operalas an unfunded graluity scheme for all ils eligible employees who have completed the minimum
qualifying period of five years of service under the scheme. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every year
using the projected unit ¢credil method. Latest valuation of the scheme was carried out on 31 December 2024,
The graluity scheme exposes the Company to the following risks:

Mortality risks

The risk thal the actual mortalily experience Is different, The effecl depends on the beneficiaries’ service / age
distribution and the benefit.

Final salary risks

The risk that the final salary at the lime of cessalion of service is higher than expeciation. Since the benefit is calculated
on the basis of final salary, the benefil amount increases proporiionately

Withdrawal risks

The risk of higher or lower wilhdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could go elther way depending on the
beneficiaries’ service [ age distribulion and the benefit.

Miee,
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Discount rate fluctuation
The plan liabilifies are calculaled using a discount rate set wilh reference to corperate bond yields. A decrease in
corporate band yields will increase plan liabililies, allhough this will be partially offset by an Increase in the value of the
current plan's bond holdings, if any.

Valuation results

The information provided in notes 17.3 to 17.10 has been obtained from the actuarial valugtion carrded oul as at 31
December 2024. The following significant assumplions have been used for valuation of this scheme:

Actuarial assumptions 2024 2023
Discount rale (per annum compaund) 12.25% 15.50%
Expected rale of increase in salary (per annum compound) 10.25% 13,50%
Moriality rate SLIC (2001 - 2005)
Wilhdrawal rate Moderate

Note 2024 2023
Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position = seeecesimeesea. {Rupees)-rmeeeeeamminnns
Prasent value of defined benefil cbligation 35,527 564 43,058,825

e e

The movement in present value of defined banefit
obligations during the year |s as follows:

Obligation as at 1 January 43,058,826 38,844,321
Charge for the year 175 4,338 340 12,781,568
Benefits paid {6,152 .400) (3.074,250)
Re-measurement gain on obligation 17.6 (5,717,202 (6.495,813)
Obligation as at 31 December 35,527,564 43,058 826

e

Amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 8,684,011 7,754,322
Interest cost 4,930,380 5,027,248
Benefil nol paid (7,276.061)

4,338,340 12,781,668

Remeasurement gain recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income

Actuarial gain an obligation (5,717,202) (6,495,813)

Sensitivity analysis:

The impacl of 1% change in the following variables on definad benefit obligation is as follows:

Change in Increase In Decrease In
assumption assumplian assumplion
%o eem (Rupeesjossmsissinim,
Discount rate 1% {1,768,743) 1,877,441
Salary increase rate 1% 2,157,930 (1.859,736)

The above sensilivily analysis is based an a change In an assumiption while holding all olhar assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumplions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensilivity of the defined benefit ebligation to significant assumplions, same method (presen value of the defined benefit
obligation caleutated with the projected unit credit method al the end of the reporing pericd) has been applled which
was applied when calculaling the graluity llability.

Mies
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Bazed on the acluarial advice, the Company inlends lo charge an amount of approximately Rs. 8.876 million in the
financial stalements in respect of the unfunded graiuily scheme for the year ending 31 December 2025,

The weighted average duration of lhe defined benefit obligalion is 5.55 years (2023: 8.11 years).

Expected maturily analysis of undiscounied obligation

[Lessthantyear} | 1.2years || 2.5years || Oversyears |
el e u.u"H.,....“...,.-.--..{ Rupe,es}-...........-.......uuuu.-.......-......-

Undiscounted paymants 8.061,168 4,426,842 13,448,011 67,762,725

LEASE LIABILITY AGAINST RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The Company has enlered Into lease agreements in respect of ils rented premises for its head office and branches.
These were Inifially measured at the present value of lease payments, discounted using the Company’s incremental
borrowing rale that ranges from 11.73% per annum lo 25.63% per annum (2023: 11.85% per annum to 2563% per
annum), The lease liabiliies are subsequenily being measured al amorlised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

The amouni of fulure payments for the leases and the period in which lhese payments will become due are as follows:

2024 2023
.................. {RUPEES)r=rrrrmmrnrans
Presenl value of minimum lease payments 33,604,104 4,679,000
Less: current portion of lease liability against right of use assels {20,272.011) (3,281,913)
13,322,003 1,397,087

The movement in lease liabilities against right-of-use assels Is as follows:
Cpening balance 4,679,000 18,082,088
Additions during the year

= Buildings 44,084,701 5,846,857
Disposals during the year / adjustment

- Buildings (825,757) .
Interes! expense lor the year 1,908,335 1,963.432
Interest payments (presenled as operaling cash Nows) {1,908 335) (1.863.432)
Principal payments made during the year (14,323 840} {19,350 ,845)
Closing balance 33,504 104 4 878,000

Cash outflow far leases

The Company has total cash ouillows for leases amounting to Rs, 16.23 million {2023: Rs. 21.214 millign). The fulure
cash oulflows relating lo leases that have nol yet commenced are disclosed in note 35.3 to these financial statements.

2024 2023
Prosent value of Present value of
I'.'Jn;:;;!n; r[:: - minlmum lease Mh:;;:ﬂ':;::s : minimum lease
payments payments
i e B i AR {Hungﬂ} —_—
Mot later than ane year 24,081 468 20,272,011 3.728.8685 3.281.913
Later than one year and but later than five years 14,881,882 13.322,093 1,430,111 1.387.087
_ 38,973,350 33,604,104 5,158,976 4,679,000
Finance cost allocated lo fulure periods {5.379,246) - (479.976) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 33,504,104 33,504,104 4 679,000 4,679,000
Less: current portion {20,272,011) (20,272,011) {3.281,913) (3,281,913)
13,322 083 13,322,093 1,397,087 1,387 067

Ates.
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Nota 2024 2023

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES B LT (310] 71,1 =
Amounts due to customers 19.1 804,991,504  1,419,288,830
Payable o Nalional Clearing Company of Pakistan Limiled 62,333,317 .
Accrued expenses 66,444,040 18,961 640
Commission payable 16,692,635 21,442 323
Withholding tax payable 10,267,929 4,048 098
Capital galn {ax payable 1,377,462 29.828.972
Sales tax payable 2,838,965 10,834,618
Other payables 19.2 21,116,353 7,109,125

986,060,114 1 I."}‘l2|5i21 £07

This inciudes amounts due to key management personnel amounting to Rs. 1.025 million (2023: Rs. 1.039 million),

This includes an amount of Rs. 0.498 million {2023 Rs. 0.488 million) payable to CLSA JV Holdings (Private) Limiled (a
related party).

Note 2024 2023
SHORT-TERM RUNNING FINANCE FACILITY e (311111 IS
Running finance arrangemenls 20.9 - 372,679,184
Accrued mark-up 404,535 27 898,118

404,535 400,477,300

This represents short-term running finance facililies obtained from commercial banks with limils aggregating to Rs. 800
million as at 31 December 2024 (2023: Rs. 1,100 million). These facillies have been oblained 1o finance of day lo day
operalions and carry mark-up al rates ranging from of 1 month KIBOR + 2% to 3 months KIBOR + 2% (2023: 3 months
KIBOR + 2%) per annum on a daily product basis. These are secured againsl hypolhecation of receivables of the
Company.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

During the current year, a customer approached the Company alleging thal a repo transaction was executed betwsen
the Company and lhe customer having a malurily date of 12 November 2024, whereby the Company had allegedly
agread wilh the customer for repurchase of 15,000 units of cerain securilies at a price / value at which the sams were
sold to the customer. The customer claimad that the repurchase price agread was Rs 150 millian.

Subsequently, the cuslomer served a legal notice to the Company on 21 November 2024, wherein the cuslomer alleged
that it had been misled inlo the purchase of the said securities al a face value of Rs 10,000 whereas the aciual face
value was Rs 5,000 resulling in a deliberate fraud of Rs 75 million and that the Company has allegedly defaulied on ils
commilments under the purported repo agreement, The ¢ustomer claimed an amount of Rs 75 million in this regard.

The customer has subsequently filed a civil Suit for declaration, recovery damages and injunetion against the Company,
amongst others, claiming for the above stated amount of Rs. 75 million.

The Company responded to the above stated legal notice and after careful perusal of the documents submilted by the
cuslomer in support of ils claims, the Company has rejecled these elaims as basesless and unsubstantialed. The
Company has also engaged legal counsel for defending the matler and based on the legal advisors' opinions, the
management is confident of a favorable culcome of the maller. Accordingly, no provislon has been made in respect of
the above matter in lhese financial stalements.

During the current year, a group of relaled customers (collectively called Group) approached the Company in November
2024 inquiring about Lheir Investments aggregating o Rs 150 million, which they alleged they had made during April
2023 with a fixed rate of return.

The inilial investigation by the Company revealed that there were no wrilten agreemenis, account opening records or
other legally binding instruments for the alleged investmenis avallable in the Company's records; lherefore, the claim
cannot be entertained Furthermore, withoul prejudice to the foregoing, since the Company is not a bank, it could not and
did not guarantee returns (o Its customers, which ths customers are also aware of,

Subsequently, on 25 January 2025, each of the customers (within the Group) senl legal nolices lo the Company alleging
that the Company had failed to fullill its legal and contraciual obligations to them through non-payment of prafit on these
investments and further alleged that the Company is liable to pay Rs 253 400 million In aggregate to them,

Aer,
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The Company has responded to the legal notices through legal counsel, refuling thelr alleged claims based on legal
advice.

The management, in consuliation with its legal counsel, is of the view thel the Company expecls a favourable outcome
and accordingly no provision has been recognised in these financial siatemenis.

A commercial bank has given a guarantee of Rs. 450 million (31 December 2023: Rs. 450 million) lo National Clearing
Company of Pakistan Limiled (NCGPL) on behalf of the Company in respect of margin eligible securities. The facilily is
renewable on yearly basis and is secured by 13l Pari Passu charge on current assels of the Company.

Note 2024 2023
OPERATING REVENUE (Rupees).cece sevrwey
Equity brakerage 221 344,919671 317,811,167
Money markel brokerage 251,217 282 120,083,348
Forex brokerage 3424192 6,401,000
Commadities brokerage 4801817 261,313
Investment advisory fee 187 312 1,500,000
Others 3,269 462,458

504!553.543 446,629,286

Equity brokerage

Retall clients 211,340,775 225,223,815
Local institutions 83,958,310 67,943 B46
Foreign instilutions 49,620,586 24,643,706

344,919,671 317,811,167

OTHER OPERATING REVENUE
Profit on savings accounts 299 87,158,250 16,138,929
Income on exposure deposits with NCCPL / Pakistan Stock

Exchange Limited 19,768,417 14,242 541
Income from Margin Financing System - 5,570,912

118,926,667 35,953,382

Profit on savings accounts

Gross profit (including profit on unutilised funds of clienls) 146,830,855 66,374,465
Profit on unutilised funds of clients (49,772,605) (50,234,536)
Net profil 97,168,260 16,139,920

COST OF SERVICES

Salaries and allowances 80,211,380 101,556,856
Charge for retirement benefil obligation 2,206,427 8,776,345
Commission expense 239,432,732 164,743,606
Insurance expense 3.411,705 2,448,066
Repairs and maintenance 5,846,324 T.775 467
Printing and stationary 728912 844 999
Fees and subscription including stock exchange, clearing

house and COC charges 42 568 854 42,049,613
Courier and communicalion 10,251,015 0,845,703
Travalling and conveyance 6542 306 B26,756
Depreciation 4 17,484,615 11,243,555
Ullitles 2,678,749 2,203,753
Enterlainment 1,185,046 1,692,347
Advertisement 136,760 308,440
Others 1,608,427 16,108,829

408,403,152 358,511,425

Mives.
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Note 2024 2023
25 ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES sessesmsrnnsssnscs | RUPBES) rmmeensrmnaranan
Salaries and allowances 70,010,765 71361174
Charge for refirement benefit obligation 2,131,913 6.006,223
Insurance expensa 1,605,143 2,187 838
Repairs and malntenance 5,704,023 5,609,111
Fees and subscription including stock exchange, clearing
house and CDC charges 10,280,142 11,123,758
Printing and stationary 1,123,971 1,316,008
Courier and communication 3,139,716 4,148,199
Travelling and conveyance 283,880 1.045,710
Legal and professional charges 18,411 460 4,026,674
Auditors’ remuneration 25.1 60,454,332 1,837,420
Depraciation 4 17,739,027 21,802,652
Amorisalion 5 725,008 703,212
Utilities 12,843,761 9,317,733
Adverisament 987 832 8,793
Enterfainment f12,729 500,890
Professional tax 562,000 114,500
Olhers 2,104 848 1,760,746
203!?40!53*3 143!930.123
251 Awditors' remuneration

Audil fee 4,200,000 1,100,000

Special audil 7,000,000 -

Advisory fee 46,000,000 .
Special certificalions 1.500.000 400,000
Out of peckel expenses 692,732 283,907
59,382 732 1,783,807
Sindh Sales Tax 1,081,800 143,513

0,454,332

_—

1,837,420

28 FINANCIAL CHARGES
Mark-up on:
Long-term loan 58,309,571 58,519,178
Short-term running finance facility 96,232,667 116,106,343
Diminishing Musharaka 4,778,980 5,388,788
Financing transactions 261 . 139,807,013
Financial charges on lease liabilily against right-ol-use assels 1,806,335 1,083,432
Bank guaraniee charges 4,350,000 5 784,877
Bank charges 114172 485,704
63501745 320,065,335
26.1  This represents mark-up charges incurred an repo fransactions and funds borrowed by the Company from customers /
brokers / third partiza. There wera no such iransaclion during lhe year,
Note 2024 2023
27 OTHER INCOME - NET B et TR [ 1] - =121 B
Dividend income 1,002,653 315,500
{Loss) / gain on disposal of properly and equipment (869,237) 55,400
Capital gain on sale of investments 114,237,572 35,763,398
Mark-up on loan to employees 327,061 821,752
Unrealised apprecialion on re-measurement
of invesimenls classified as financlal assels ‘al fair value
through profit or loss' - net 33,608,150 28,264,936
Mark-up earned on financing transaclion 271 3,265,117 131,506,663

152!4?0!21? 196,818,149

Mree.
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This represente mark-up charged by the Gompany lo a cuslomer under “reverse repurchase Iransaction” in year 2023
The financing was made against shares (as collaleral) by Ihe Company lo the customer.

2024 2023
OTHERCHARGES e (RUPEES)weseccrrnraca

Penally imposed by Pakislan Stock Exchange Limited : 2,000,000

This penalty was imposed by Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) on account of non-compliances observed in lhe
year 2023 with regards to requirements under PSX Regulalion 4.17.1 {a) (Segregation of clienls’ assets by lhe
sacurities braokers).

Note 2024 2023
{Restatad)
LEVY AND TAXATION R LI ECEREE [ 117 ,1-1-1-) [ ——
Levy 202 45,737,157 28,756,365
Current tax - Current Year i 5
- Prior Year {8,395,930) -
Deferred lax - Current Year " 3
281 36,341,227 28,756,365

The numerical reconciliation between lha average tax rate and the applicable tax rale has nol heen presented in the
financial staternents as the provision for current year income lax has baen made under secfians 113, 153 and 233 of the
Ingome Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) due lo tax loss in the current year, adjustment of alternate corporate tax
paid in prior years and liabilily under minimum lax regime being higher than the liability under normal tax regime.

This represents minimum and final taxes paid under seclions 150 and 233 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, represanting
lavy in terms of reguirements of IFRIC 21 and 1AS 37.

The lax authorities had issued nolices in respect of fax years 2016, 2017 and 2020 for monitering of withholding taxes,
slating nan / short deduclion of tax under cerain heads which the tax aulhoritios intend lo recover under seclion
161/205 of the ITO, 2001. The Depuly Commissioner IR has passed orders dated 31 Decembar 2020 and 3 January
2022 under sections 161/205/182 of the Ordinance raising a demand of Rs. 5258 million, Rs. 18.310 million and Rs,
16.849 million for tax year 2016, 2017 and 2020 respectively. On the Company's appeal, the Commissioner Infand
Revenue (Appeals) has remanded back the impugned orders for the tax years 2018 and 2017 for re-examination and re-
consideration of the facls of the case vide separate orders dated 25 March 2021. Commissioner IR {Appeals) also
remanded back the order for the tax year 2020 regarding the recovery under section 161 of the Ordinance and deleted
the penally imposed under seclion 182 vide order dated 28 April 2022. Howsver, appeal on the issue of additional
surcharge has been dismissed, regarding which a rectificalion application has been filed, which is pending adjudication.

After gelection for audit by FBR lhrough random balloting, the return of income of tax year 2018 was amended vide
order dated 18 June 2022 raising demand of Rs. 95.148 million. On the Company's appeal, lhe Commissioner Inland
Revenue (Appeals) has deleled the disallowance of Rs. 281.526 million In relation to the issuance of shara capilal,
disallowance amounting lo Rs. 12.348 million on account of unabsarbed depreciation and disallowance amounting to
Rs. 166.412 million on account of claim of unadjusted loss from business and has remanded back disallowance of
expenses at Rs. 38.017 million for re-examination, reconsideration, re-verification and re-adjudication.

The management based on Ihe advice of its tax advisor is confident that the above matlers will be decided in the favour
of the Company. Accordingly, no pravision has been recognised in respect of the above matlers in these financlal
statements.

2024 2023
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (Number)--—--meemmnan
Number of employees at the end of the year 100 114
Average number of employees during the year 108 114

Mee.
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CLSA Limited - Associated Company
Brokerage income

Alfalah GHP Islamic Stock Fund - Aszociate
Brokerage Income

Alfalah GHP Value Fund - Associate
Brokerage income

Alfalah GHP Alpha Fund - Associate
Hrokerage incoma

Alfalah GHP Stock Fund - Associate
Brokerage income

Alfalah GHP Pension Fund - Equity Sub fund - Associate
Brokerage income

Alfalah GHP Islamic Pension Fund - Equily Sub fund - Associate
Brokerage income

Alfalah GHP Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund - Associate
Brokerage income

Alfalah GHP Dedicated Equity Fund - Associate
Brokerage income

Alfalah GHP Cash Fund - Associate
Brokerage income - Money Market

Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund - Associate
Brokerage income - Money Market

Alfalah Financial Sector Income Plan-1
Brokerage income - Money Market

Alfalah Financial Value Plan 1
Brokerage income - Money Markel

Alfalah GHP Islamic Income Fund
Brokerage income - Maney Market

Alfalah GHP Ineome Fund
Brokerage income - Money Markel

Alfalah Ghp Sovereign Fund
Brokerage income - Money Market

Alfalah GHP Income Multiplier Fund
Brokerage income - Money Markel

Alfalah GHP Pension Fund MM Sub Fund
Brokerage income - Money Marked

Alfalah GHP Islamic Value Fund
Brekerage income - Monay Market

Alfalah Insurance Company Limited
Brokerage income - Money Market

Alfalah Islamic Money Market Fund
Brokerage Income - Maoney Market

Miee,

2024

e 11,7111

48,420,080

310,558

£6.841

149,361

470,122

15,680

3,150

32,244

77194

1,075.932

48,000

6,356

20,281

239,059

854,821

94,556

7,054

38,700

3,202

455,813

ErEEs Emrrm . ——

24,100,888

213,781

16.025

91,053

179,468

3.375

12,315

3,644

1,228

104,235

777691

43,784

32,338

31,182

5,000

325

48,450

35,179

140,169
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Alfalah Islamic Pension Fund MM Sub Fund
Brokerage income - Maoney Market

Alfalah Islamic Rozana Amdani Fund
Brokerage income - Money Market

Alfalah Islamic Sovern Plan 2
Brokerage income - Maney Market

Alfalah Islamic Sovern Plan 1
Brokerage income - Money Markel

Alfalah Stable Return Plan 8
Brokerage income - Money Markel

Alfalah Stable Return Plan 9
Brokerage incoms - Money Markel

Alfalah Islamic KPK Employe Penslon Fund MM Sub
Brokerage income - Money Markel

Key Management Personnel
Brokerage ingome
Reversal against allowance for expecled credil losses

2024

2023

[ —— ...[H upseg}-u.-... PP

976

219,226

174,375

96,996

4,000

2,000

325

192,817

476,310

287,982

7,500

35,723,509
(49,220,758)

Balances with related parties (other than thoso which have been disclosed else where in these financial

statements):

Bank Alfalah Limited - Parent Company (95.58% sharcholding)
Receivable against trade of marketable securilles

Money market brokerage receivable

Forex brokerage recelvable

Investment advisory fee receivable

Bank balances

CLSA JV Holdings (Private) Limited - Associated Company
Other payable

Bank Alfalah Islamic - Assoclated Company
Money market brokerage receivable

Alfalah Insurance Company Limited - Assoclated Company
Receivable against lrade of marketable securities

CLSA Limited » Associated Company
Recelvable against rade of markelable securilies

Alfalah GHP |slamic Stock Fund - Associate
Recelvable against Irade of marketable securilies

Alfalah GHP Alpha Fund - Associate
Receivable against trade of marketable securilies

Alfalah GHP Stock Fund - Associate
Receivable against trade of marketable securilles

Alfalah GHP Islamic Dedlcated Equity Fund - Associate
Recelvable agalns! rade of marketable securities

gics

2024

767,272
1.352,624
31.625
1,504,505
39,104,370

497,568

505,390

2,551,417

204,304

143,387

349,492

162,075
570,445
13.560
1,684,885
139,983,788

497 568

209,524

365.816

46,483

183,166

43,861

67,646

1,626
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2024 2023

................. [RUPEES)-swmnsonisrnnnnnas
Alfalah GHP Value Fund - Associate
Recelvable against \rade of markelable securities 50,290
Alfalah GHP Cash Fund - Associate
Money market brokerage receivable 139,687 106,985
Ajfalah GHP Money Market Fund - Associale
Money market brokerage receivable 1,680,086 827,898
Alfalah Financial Sector Income
Maoney market brokerage receivable 48 DEB
Alfalah Financial Value Plan 1
Money marke! brokerage receivable 7,262
Alfalah GHP Islamic Income Fund
Money markel brokerage receivable 9,438 48,233
Alfalah GHP Income Fund
Money market brokerage receivable 158,237 36,000
Alfalah GHP Sovereign Fund
Money market brokerage receivable 953,028 28425
Alfalah GHP Income Multiplier Fund
Money market brokerage recelvable 78,780 5,650
Alfalah GHP Pension Fund M Sub
Money market brokerage recsivable 7078 Ja7
Alfalah GHP Islamic Value Fund
Money market brokerage receivable 16,850 654,748
Alfalah Insurance Company Limited
Money market brokerage recelvable - 39.752
Alfalah Istamic MM Fund
Meney market brekerage receivable B3B,40D 135,013
Alfalah Islamic Pension Fund MM Sub
Money market brokerage receivable 1,102
Alfalah Islamic Rozana Amdani
Money market brokerage receivable 538,622 391 528
Alfalah Islamie Sovern Plan 2
Money market brokerage receivable 199,151
Alfalah Islamic Sovern Plan 1
Mangy markel brokerage receivable 465,214 354,610
Alfalah Stable Return Plan 7
Manay markel brokerage receivable J67 367
Alfalah Stable Return Plan §
Money market brokerage receivable 13.075 8475
Alfalah Stable Return Plan 8
Money market brokerage recelvable 2,300 -

Alfalah Stable Return Plan 5
Money markel brokerage receivable 10,030 10,030

Atee
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Alfalah Financial Seclor Income
Money marke! brokerage receivable

Alfalah Islamlc KPK Employee Pension
Money markel brokerage recelvable

Key Management Personnel

Receivable against trade of marketabla securities
Payable against trade of marketahle securities
Allowance for expected credit losses

during the currenl year,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets

Loan lo employees

Long-lerm deposits

Trade receivables - nel
Invesiments

Deposits and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities

Long-term loan

Lease liability agains! right-of-use assets
Payable against Diminishing Musharaka
Trade and other payables

Short-term running finance facility

Financlal assets

Loan to employees

Long-lerm deposils

Trade receivables - nel
Invastments

Deposils and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities

Lang-term loan

Lease llabilily againsi right-of-use assels
Payable against Diminishing Mugharaka
Trade and other payables

Short-term running finance facility

Mo

2024 2023
wnmme e RUPBEE])--mmromsvmncanene
11,300 5,850
387 -
13,473,755 580,474,608
8,614 1,756,480
11,420,652 441,223,347

The balances for the current year do not include balances of Ex-CEO Mr, Alif Muhammad Khan as he was dismissed

Nate 2024 2023
................ (RUp@ES])-=srremrmmrmmmrrn:
13 1,206 525,042 512,335 750
—1.286525,047 512335758
2024
At fairvalue
A a':::“d fhrough profit or Total
logs
(Rupees) e e
62,762 B 362,762
17,369,353 - 17,369,353
294,087,597 - 294 087,597
. 52,606,946 52,806,946
13,393,576 . 13,393,576
1,208,525 042 - 1,296,525,042
1,621,738,330 52,806,045 1,674,545,276
309,583,544 309,583,544
33,524,104 33,594,104
14,967,047 - 14,967 047
o71,577,758 e 971,677,758
404,535 404,535
1,330,126,088 1 330!125,983
2023
Al falr value
N through profit or Total
cosl
loss
T T ST TR TR mlﬂupga;im_ ..................... i
2,837,517 2.837.517
16,328,013 - 16,320,013
454 903 061 - 464,993,051
. 136,935,796 136,935,708
304,150,210 - 304,150,210
512,335,759 - 512,335,759
1,300,645,560 136,935,196 _1,437,561,346
316,257,534 - 316,257,534
4 679,000 4 879,000
23071137 . 23,071,137
1,467 811,318 E 1,467,811.318
400,477,300 - 400,477,200
2,212,285,289 - 2,212,296,289
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's aclivities expose [l 1o a varlety of financial risks which mainly include market risk. credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Board of Directors of the Company has the overall responsibilily for lhe establishment and oversighi of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Board is also responsibla for developing and moniloring the Company’s
risk management policies.

Market risk
Market risk is the rigk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of financial instruments may flucluate due to changes in

market prices (e.q. foreign exchange rales, inlerest rales, equily prices, etc.). The objective of markel risk management
is to manage and control markel risk exposure within acceptable parameters while oplimising returns for shareholders.

Market risk comprises three lypes of risks: currency rigk, price risk, and yield / interest rate risk.
Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that lhe value of a financial asset or liability will flucluate due lo changes in foreign currency

rales. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due lo transaclions in forgign
currencies. The Company primarily has foreign currency expasure in US Dollars. Details of the balance are as follows:

Us Dollars
2024 || 2023

Payable o CLSA JV Holdings (Private) Limited 1,768 1,768

As al 31 December 2024, if Pakistani Rupee had strengthened / weakened by 1% against US Dollar with all other
variables held constant, the impact en the lotal comprehensive income would have been lower / higher by an amount of
Rs. 0.005 million (2023: Rs. 0.005 million).

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will flucluate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rale risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by
faclors specific to the individual financial inslrumenl or ils issuer, or faclors alfecting all similar financial insiruments
Iraded in the markel,

The Company is exposed lo price risks because of invesiments held by the Company in shares of Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited. in case of 1% Increase / decrease in the market price of the shares held, the total comprehensive
income of the Company would be higher / lewer by approkimately Rs. 0.528 million (2023: Rs. 1.369 million).

Yield / interest rate risk

Interest rale risk is the risk thal the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in markel interes! rales. The Company's inlerest rale risk mainly arises from its bank balances in savings
accounts, loan to employees, long-lerm loan, shori-lerm running finance facility, lease liabilily against right-of-use
assels and payable against Diminishing Musharaka. The Company has adopted appropriate poficies o minimise its
exposure o this risk. Tha intarast rate profile of the Company's significant inlerest bearing financial instrumenls is as
follows:

Interost rate Amount in Rupees
2024 || 2023 2024 [| 2023
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets
Loan to employeas 15.86% 23.31% 362,762 2,837,517
Balances with banks in savings aceounls 10% o 20.5% 7% 1o 20.5% 486,677,334 349,807,136

485,940,096 352,644,653
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Interest rale Amount in Rupees
2024 [ 1 2023 2024 || 2023
Financial liabillties
Long-term loan 1% 21.50% 309,583,544 316,257 534
Payable agains! Diminishing Musharaka 25% 26% 14,967,047 23,071,137
Shorl-term running finance facilily 18.09% 24.684% 404,535 400,477,300

324,955,126 739,605,971

Interest rate Amount in Rupees
2024 [l 2023 2024 [ 2023
Fixed rate instruments
Financial [iability
Lease liability agains! right-of-use assels 11.73% lo 25.63%  11.89% 10 25.63% 33,594,104 4,679,000

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instrumenits

The Company does nol have any fixed rale financisl assets and liabilities which are classified at fair value through profit
or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the end of the reporling year would not affect the total comprehensive
incoma.

Cash flow sensltivity for variable rate instruments

As al 31 December 2024, if the interest rate increased / decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant for
variable rale inslrumenis, ihe total comprehensive income of the Company would have been lower / higher by Rs. 1.610
milllon {2023: Rs. 3.872 million).

Credit risk

Credit risk is Ihe risk thal one party lo a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other pariy
to ineur a financial lass, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Credil risk arises fram the inability of
the issuer of the instruments, the relevant financial inslilulions or counter perles In case of placemenits or ather
arrangamenis Lo fulfil their obligations,

Exposure to credit risk

Credil risk of the Company arises principally from long-lerm deposits, trade receivables, loan to employeas, other
recelvables and bank balances. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credil exposure. To
reduce the exposure to credil risk, the Company has developed its own rlsk management policies and guidelines
whereby clients are provided frading limits according to their worth and margins are collected and maintained from the
clienls, The managemen continuously monitors the credit exposure lowards the clienls and makes provision against
ihose balances considered doubtiul of recovery.

The Company's policy Is ta enfer inte financial contracts in accordance wilh the Internal risk management policies and
investment and ocperalicnal guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. Except for provision made against lrade
receivables amounting lo Rs. 1,243.317 milion (2023: Rs. 1,172,452 million) (refer nole 9.5), provision against
advances amounting lo Rs. 3.405 million (2023: Rs. 3.405 million) (refer note 11.2) and provision against loan to
employees amounling to Rs. 1.141 million (2023: Rs. 1.141 million) (refer note 6.4), the Company does not expect lo
incur material credit losses on ils financial assels. The maximum exposure 1o credit risk at the reporting date was as
follows:

2024 2023
S TR (R UTTaT1-1- ) R
Loan to employees 362,762 2837617
Long-term doposits 17.369,353 16,329,013
Trade receivables - net 204 087 697 464,993,051
Deposils and other receivables 13,393,576 304,150,210
Bank balances 1,286,490,056 512,234,835

1,631,713 244 1 SBDiWiEEE

35.2.2 The agelng analysis of trade receivables is disclosed in nole 8.1 to the financial stalements.

Altee,
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35.2.3 The credit quality of Company’s balances with banks can be assessed with reference to external credii ratings as follows:
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Allied Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limiled

Bank AL Habib Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Bank Makramah Limiled

Banklslam| Pakistan Limited

Bank of Khyber

Bank of Punjab

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limiled

Habib Metropolitan Bank
Limiled

JS Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limiled

Natlonal Bank of Pakistan

Silk Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited

United Bank Limitad

O — Rating Amount in Rupees

Shortterm || Long-term 2024 2023
PACRA A-1+ ABA 1,306,670 1,330,727
PACRA A-le Ady+ 6,220,468 287188
PACRA A1+ AlA 1,182,785,081 337,950,024
PACRA A1+ AA+ 51,870,165 139,983,780
- Unrated Unraled 545,743 641,586
PACRA A-1 Ah- 87,397 708,013
PACRA VIS A-1 A 354,684 225,816
PACRA A=+ AA+ 3,724,544 3,724,544
VIS A1+ A 1.579.185 581,099
PACRA VIS A+ AR 12,022,029 1,953,809
VIS A+ PAA 10,799,505 6,849,433
PACRA A1+ Ad+ 258,880 452 936
PACRA A+ AR 1,617,273 618,731
PACRA A1+ AsA 7,887,366 2,880,028
Wis A1+ BAA 6,531,296 5317082
PACRA /IS B+ AnA, 1,104,325 5,608,051
AU b A2 A- 684,573 1,293,269
PACRA A-t+ AA- 3,148,103 168,861
VIS A1+ Akl 3,852,679 1,641,069

The Company does nol hold any other financial assels which are rated,

Liguidity risk

1,286,400,856

512,234,835

Liquidity risk is the risk Ihat the Company will encounter difficully in meefing its financial obligations associated with ils
financial Kiabililizs thal are seflled by delivering cash or ancther financial assel. Liquidity risk arlses because of the
possibility thal the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or have difficully in raising funds
lo meet commilments associaled with financial labilities as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk managemeni implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availabilty of funding to an adequate amount of commitiad

eredit facililies and the ability to close out markel pesilions due to the dynamic nature of the business.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabililies inlo refevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporling date to Ihe contractual maturity dale. The amounls in the lable are the conlractual undiscounled

cash Nows.

Financial liabilities
Long-lerm loan
Lease-liabilily against
right-of-use assels
Payable against Diminishing
Musharaka
Trade and cther payables
Short-term running
finance facility

et

2024
More than thres
Carmrylng amount Conu;z:: pasl u':“?nm':a manths and up to HiRra han pog
one yoar year

[T N e AR A R B (1] = B e . -
300,583,544 309,583,544 9,624,659 - 288 958,885
33,584,104 28,639,131 1,000,002 13,757.247 14,881,882
14,987,047 22132702 2.115.339 5,346,017 13,671,346
986,060,114 986,060,114 964 943,781 - 21,118,353

404 5315 404,535 404,535 - =.
1,344 609,344 1,347,820,026 Q?BIO 88,206 20,103,264 349|623 4686
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2023
More than three
Carrylng amount m"”;i‘:’ ehsy U;g:n:::e manths and up to Hure;::? il
one year
............................ ssvrassessassussennmsnnssns [RUPBRErssssssresssases il
Financial liabilities
Long-term loan 316,257,534 316,257,534 - 316,257,534 -
Lease [iability against
right-of-use assets 4 679,000 5,158,976 198,000 3,530,865 1,430,111
Payable against Diminishing
Musharaka 23071137 38,069,424 2,651 664 7,954,092 27 462,768
Trade and other payables 1,512.521,607 1.512,621607 1,605412,482 - 7,108,126
Shori-ferm running
finance facility 400,477,300 400,477,300 - 400,477,300 -
2,257 006678 2.272.484,B41 1.508,262,146 728,220,691 36,002,004

Operational risk

Operational risk [s the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variely of causes associaled wilh the processes,
technology and infrastructura supporting the Company's operations either internally within the Company or externally at
the Company's service providers, and from external faclors other than credil, market and liquidity risks such as lhose

arising fram legal and regulalory requiremenls and generally accepled slandards of investment managameant behaviour,
Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s aclivilies.

The Company’s objeclive is lo manage operalional risk so as lo balance financial losses and damage 1o ils reputation
while achieving itz investmeanl abjéclive of generaling relurns for investors.

The primary responsibility for the developmenl and implementalion of contrals over operalianal risk rests with the Board
of Directors. This responsibilily encompasses the conlrols in the following areas:

- requiremenlts for appropriale segregalion of dulies between various funclions, roles and responsibilifies;
- raquiremenis for Ihe reconciliation and moniloring of ransaclions;

- compliance with regulatory and olher legal requiremenls;

- documentallen of conlrols and procedures;

- requiremants for the periodic assessmenl of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of conirols and procedures
to address the risks idenlified;

- elhical and busingss standards; and
- risk miligation, including insurance whaere It is effective.

Senior management ensures lhal the Company's employees’ have adequale training and experience and foslers
effeclive cormmunicalion refated o operational risk management.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid fo transfer a liabilily in an orderly transaclion
between markel participanis at the measurement dale.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption”thal the Company is a going concern withoul any intention or
requirement lo curlail malerially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms,

Financlal assels which are lradable in an open market are revalued al the markel prices prevalling on the reporting date.

The eslimated falr value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered no! lo be significanily different from the
respeclive book values.

Aee.
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Fair value hierarchy

Infernational Financial Reporting Standard 13, 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Company lo classify assels using
a fair value hierarchy that reflecis the significance of lhe inpuls used in making the measurements. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or lisbilities:

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 thal are ohservable for the assel or liabilily either direclly
{i.e. as prices) or indireclly (iLe. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inpuls for the assel or liabilily that are not based on ebservable market data (j.e. unobservable inpuls).

As al 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Company held the following financial instruments measured al
fair values:

2024
Level1 || Level2 || Level3
B —— ..{Rupngg}...-...."--...................
Financlal assets
At fair value through profit or loss 52,806,946 = o
2023
Level1 || Level2z || Leveld
S | TP e

Financial assets
At fair value through profit or loss 136,935,796 -

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The objeclive of lhe Company when managing caplial Is lo safeguard ils ability to continue as a going concern so that il
can confinue fo provide relurns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an oplimal capital
strugture to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages ils capilal siructure by monitoring return on net assels and makes adjustments o it in the light
of changes In econormic condilions. In order 1o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividend pald o ils shareholders or issue new shares.

The management seeks to mainlain a balance between higher relumms that might be possible wilh higher lavels of
borrowings and the advantages and securily afforded by a sound capital position.

The Company's strategy is to ensure compliance with (he capital requirements of the Company as are set and regulaled
by the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limiled.

2024 2023
Capital Adequacy Level B e T 1112171 T,
Total assels 1,834,706455  1,588.487.046
Less: Total liabllitles {(1,380,136,908) {2,300,085,404)
Less: Revaluation reservas (created upon revaluation of fixed assets) - -
Capital Adequacy Level 454.650.547 (713,578,3568)

While determining the valus of lhe tolal assels of the TREC Holder, Notional value of the TRE cerlificate of Pakisian
Stock Exchange Limiled is considered, which was determined as NI, for Alfalah Securities (Privale) Limiled as al 31
December 2024 by Pakislan Stock Exchange Limited.

Mies.
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Liquid Capital Balance

5 a7 St Valup In Halrcut ! et adjusted
Ho. Pek Rupess atjustmenls Value
1 Assets
1.1 Propery and equipment 53,897,076 || 93.807.076 -
1.2 Inlangible assels 9847153 || 9.547.153 -
1.3 Investment in govemment securilias . . .
14  lnvesiment in debt securities
If listed than:
i, &% of the balance sheet value, in the case of fenure uplo | year. % =
it 7.5% of the balance shesl value, inthe cass of tenure from 1+ 3 years. . -
iii. 10% of the balance sheel value, Inthe case of lanure of mote Inan 3 yaais. = & -
If unlisted than:
i. 10% of (he ba'ance sheel value, in the case of tenure wpto 1 year. > =
in, 12.5% of he balance sheet value, in lhe casa of lenure from 1 - 3 years. -
iil. 16% of the batanze shee! value, in lhe case of lenure of more [han 3 years, 5 . .
1.5 Investment in equity securilies
L If listed 5% or VaR of each secwity on the culolf dale a5 compu'ed by the cleading Fause
ler regpoctive securly whichever s higher. Provided that if any of these securilies are pedged
wilh the secudies exchange for maintaln'ng Base Minimum Capilal Regquirement, 100%
haircul an the valug of eigble secuntios to the extent of minimum required valug of Base
Minimim Capital. 52,BCH846 || 52.808,946 .
i, [Funlisied, 100% of the camying value ”
16 Inwesimen] in subsidianes 2 4
17 Invesiment In assecialed companies | underakings
i, If lisled, 20% cr VaR of each securlies as compuled by Ihe Securilies Excharge for
respective secyrities, whichaver is highsr . -
I Ifuniisted, 100% of nel value. -
1.8 Statulory or regulatory deposits ! basic deposils with tho exchanges, clearing hause or
central depository or any other entlty.
100% of net value, however any encess amount of cash deposited with Secunbies Exchange
lo comply with requirements of Base Minimum Capdal may be Izken in tha caleuistion of LG
16,651,353 2,881,333 13,810,000
1.8 Margin degosits with exchange and cleairg house. 4 47B.GBS - 4 470665
1,10 Deposit with authorized inlermediary againsl borowed securities under SL8. 4 . L
111 Other deposits and prepaymenis €,053,291 6,068,291 :
1.12  Accrued intecest, profil or mark-up on ameouris placed with financial insfitulions o debl
secuiilies elc. (Nil) 1,808.811 - 1,808.811
104% in respect of mark-up asereed on lpens lo directars, subsidiariss and otner relsted
pariies =
113 Divicands receivable 3
1.4 Amounls receivable againsl Repd finanting,
Amount pald as purchasar under Ihe REPO agreament (Secudties purchased under repa
arrangement shall not be included In the investments). .
1.15 Advances and receivables other than trade receivables: -
I. No halrcut may be applied on the sharl-lerm lean 10 employees provided these loans are
gecured and due ler regayments wilnin 12 moalhs. 358,762 - 356,162
ii. Mo heircul may be epplied lo the advance lax to the exent il is netled with provision of
axalion. . - o
fil. In 2 other cases. 100% of netvalue. 60,725,738 || 60,725,738
1.16 Receivables fram clearing house or Securilies Exchange(s)
005 value of cieims other lhan those on account of entillements against rading of securiles
in all markets including MIM gains. 7,808,500 - 7,808,600
117 Receivables from cuslomers

i In case receivabies are agalnsl margin financing, Ihe aggreqate of

8 value of securities held in the blocked account alfer applying VaR based haircul;

b. cash depomited az collatera! by the financee,

& manat value ol any securilies deposited as collalers! after applylng VaR based halrcid.
I. Lower of net balansa sheel value or value determined through adjustments.

ii. In case recevables are againsl margin rading, 5% of the nal balance shael value

[l Mot amount after deducting haircut

i, In ease recelvablas afa against secunfies borowings under SLB. The amount paid lo
MCCPL a5 collateral upan enienng inte the conlracl

I, Met amount after deducting halrout

Mies,
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8. P Vilut in I_ia1r:ulf Hel adjustead
Ho. Pak Rupees || adjusiments Valug
i, In case of other trade receivables nol more than 5 days cverdue, 0% of the nel balance
shaet valus,
iv. Balance shest valuo 203,975 443 203975448
v In eaze of olhar irade receivalyes are overdue, of 5 days or more, The agoregate of:
a. the markel value of securilies puichased for cuslemers and held in sub-accounts sfier
applying VaR based hairculs;
b. cash deposited a5 collateral by the respecive cuslomer, and
¢. the markel value of secusties he'd az coltalesal after applylng VaR based haircuts,
v. Lower of net balance sheet value or value determined through adjustments 70,987,453 || 62,065,078 3972375
i, In case ol amount receivable fram related paries. va'ua determined after applying
appiicabla hairculs on underying securities readily avaliable in respeclive CDS account of Ihe
related party in the fallowing manner
3. Up lo 30 days, values determined after applying VaR based hairculs,
b. Above 30 days bt upta 90 days. value delermined afier applying 50% or VaR based
halreuts whichever is higher:
. Above 90 days, 100% haircut shall ke applicable,
wi. Lawer ol net bzlance sheet valus or value determined through adjusiments 11,315,196 || 11,315,186 .
1.8 Cash and Bank balances
i. Bank balances - propriglary accounis 498,026,508 - 485,028,508
i1, Bank balances - cusicmer accounls 197 473 448 = 77473 448
|, Cash in hand 25,006 . 25088
148  Subseription money egainsl investment in IPO J offer for sale (asset)
i Mo haireul may be appiied in respect of amounl paid as subscriplion morey, provided that
shates hava vo! teen alkolled or are nol lncluded in the investments of securilies broker.
ji. In case of Investment in IPO where shares have been allolted bt not yel crecited in CDS
accounl, 25% haleeut wall be appicabile on the valuz of such securities. & =
iil. In case of subscriplion in fight shatas whare the sheres have not yel been credited in CDS
account, 15% or VAR based halrcul whichever is tigher, will be applied on night shares. . ) :
120 Tolal Assels 1,837,296,455 1,637,608,623
2 Liabilities
21 Trade payables
I. Payale to exchanges and clzaring house 62,333,317 62333347
ii, Paysble againel laveraged markel products . .
iii. Payable lo customers 804,991,504 804,991,504
2.2 Current liabilities -
i. Siatutory 2nd regulalory duss 14,482,356 . 14,482,255
i, Accruzls and other payables 104.657.472 104,657 472
iii, Shorl-tarm bomrowings . - .
iv. Cunent pocion of subordinated foans . . -
v. Current posion of long-lerm labilles 9,583 Sad - 4,583,544
vi. Delerred liaoilives - B .
vil. Pravigion for laxalion 5 =
will. Qlhar Uabiilies a5 per accouning principles and included in the inangial slalements 24,758,817 - 24,758,817
2.3 Man-currant fiahilities
|, Long-lem financing 300,000,000 || 300,000,000 -
i, Diner Fabilties as per accounting principles ard included i (ke financizl slatements 23802334 || 10480241 13,322,093
iil. Stalf retirement benafils 35,527,564 - 35527 564
Mole; (a} 100% haircul may be ellowed against long-term portion af fnancing obtained lrom a
financial insttutian including amount due agalnst finance leazes.
b} Nilin a9 ether cases,
24  Subordinated loans
i 100% of subcrdinated lgans which fulfill the cenditisns specified by SECP are afowed 1o be
dedustad, 5 3 =

Miee,




36

Head of actount

Vilua in
Pak Rupees

Hilrcul )
adjusiments

Het adjusted
Value

25

26

31

2

33

34

15

38
az

3.8

38

Advance againsl shares lor increase in capilal of securitles brakar:

100% haircut may be al'owed inrespact of advance against sharas if

a. The exsting authorized share capilal allows Ihe propozed enhanced share capital,

b. Board of Directors of ine company has approved the Inciease in caplial:

© Relevant Requialory approvals have been ocolained,

d. There is no unreascnable delay in issue of shaves sgeinsl advance and all requlatory
requirements refaling to fhe increase in paid vp capital have been compleled,

e Audilor is salisfied (hal such gdvance is 8gsins! the increase of capltal

Total Lishilitles

Ranking liabilities refating to:
Concenlration In Margin Financing

The amourl calculaled chenl-lo-clien! baxs by which any amount receivable lrom any of the
financens excesd 10% of the agoiegata of amounts receivable irom tolal finances. [Provided
that above prescribed adjustiments shall nol be epplicable where the aggregale amount of
receivable against margin financing daas nol exceed By 5 miken)

Mole: Qnly amount exceading by 105 of each financee from aogregate amoun! shall be
Include in the ranking fabilding.

Concenlralion in securities lending and borrowing

Trie amount by which lhe aggragate of;

I, Amounl deposited by |he barrower with NCCPL

li. Cash margins paid and

ili. The marke! value of secuiilies pladged as matgin excaed the 110% of the markel value of
shares barrowed (Mole: Only amount exceeding by 110% of each bomower from markel value
of shares borrowed shall be Included in [he ranking liablldes)

Nel underwriling commilmants

{#) In the case of rght issues: If Ihe markel value of securilies is less than of equal 1o the
subscfiplion price,

Ihe aggregale of.

i, the 505: of haircut mulliplied by the underariling commitments, and

ii. the value by which the undenariling cemmitments exceeds the markel prica of the

secuniies,

Inthe case of rghls issues where Ine markel prce of securles is grealer than the
subscriplion price. 5% of the haircul multiptiad by the net undemwriling cemmilment

[b) in any other ease: 12 5% of the nel undensriling commilmants

MNegative equily of subsidiary

The amount by which the laolal aszels of the subsidiary (excluding any amouni dus from the
subsidiary) exceeds the tolal liakilities of the subsidany

Farelgn exchange agreements and farelgn currency positions

5% af the nal pesiion in foreign currency. Ne! position in loreign cumency means the
differance of |otal assels denominaled in foreign cunrency fess tal lablies dencminated in
foraign currency.

Amount payable under REPO

Repo adjustmeant

In the case of linancier | purchaser, the Iolal amound recenablo under Repo less the 110%
ol the markel value of undethying secuntias,

In the case of financee | seller, the market valus of underlying secunilies after applying
haireld less the iotal amount received less value of eny secudilios deposited a3 colfateral by
the purchaser afier applying halrcut less any cash deposited by the purchaser.

Concentrated proprielary posilions

I thia markel value of any secunly is between 25% and 51% of the total proprietary positions
then 5% of the value of such security. If the markel valve of @ secunly excesds §1% of tha
proprietary posilion, then 10% of the value of such security.

Opening positions in futures and optlons

l. In case of cuslomer positions, the 12lal margin requirements in respect of open postions
less the amourt of cash deposited by the customer and Lhe valug of securities held as
collateral f pledged with Securilles Exchange afler applying VaR haircut

i, Incase of propretary positions, 1he (otal margin requrements in respect of open positions to
Ihe extent not already mel

Mies,
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Hezd of Valuzin Haiicut | Het adjusted
ead of acsout Pak Rupees adjusiments Value

Fo

310 Shor sell posilions
i. In case of cuslomer positions, he marke! value of shares cold shod in ready markel on
behail of cuslomers alter increasing the same with lhe VaR based hairculs less the cash
deposited by the customer as co¥ateral and (e value of securties held as cofalersl alter
applying VAR based hairculs. . X .
i I case ol proprdetary posifions, the market value of shares sold shord in ready markel and
rol yat sollieg increased by the amgunl of VAR based haircut less the value of securilies
pledged as collaters] alter applying halrculs. - . .

311 Tolal ranking labilities - §

457,159,647 Liquid Capital 488,031,956
ey _—

BASE MINIMUM CAPITAL REQUIREMENT

Accarding to Regulation 18.2 of the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, every TREC holder licensed as a
Securilies Broker under Securities Brokers (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016 is required lo maintain a Base
Minimum Capital (BMC) of the amount and in the form as prescribed in the Rule Book based on the Securilies Broker's
Assets Under Custody. As at 31 December 2024, the Company is required to maintain BMC of Rs. 31.468 million (2023:
Rs. 30.545 million).

2024 2023
Base Minimum Capilal maintained by the Company and is as follows: ssssmsnsmsnnnscia [ RUPEOR] rveme memsimasanns
1,802,953 shares of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 36,974,377 17,336,902
Cash 13,810,000 13,210,000
50,784,377 30,545 902

DISCLOSURE UNDER REGULATION 5{4) OF RESEARCH ANALYST REGULATIONS, 2015

As a securilles broker, lhe Company also issues research reporls on securities listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. As
at 31 December 2024, the Company has employed 2 individuals in ils research deparimenl, including the Head of
Rasearch. All team members repor direclly lo the Head of Research, who, in lurn, reports o the CED,

The compensalion structure for research analysls employed by the Gompany is based on the qualificalions, experlence,
and skill set and no employee is provided compensalion based on the cantent or oulcome of their research reparts.

The tolal salary for the year anded 31 December 2024 of the employags in the Ressarch Depariment amounted lo Rs.
11.729 million (2023: Rs. 16.323 millian), which includes basic salary and other allowances as per Company's poliey.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF BALANCE SHEET RISKS

The Company purchases and sells securities as elther principal or agenls on behalf of ils customers. IT elther fhe
customer or a counterparly fails to perform, the Company may be required fo discharge the obligation on behall of the
non-performing pary. In such circumstances, the Company may sustain losses if the market value of the securlly Is
differenl from the conlracted value of the Iransaclion less any margin deposils that the Company has on hand. Where
lhe customer operales through institulional delivery syslem, the Company is nof exposed 1o this risk.

The majorily of the Company's transaclions, and consequently, Ihe conceniralion of ils credil exposure are with the
customers and other financial institulions. The G-::mpam,f seeks 1o control iis credil risk l.hruugh a variefy of repnm'ng and
conlrols procedures, including establishing credit limits based upon a review of the counterparties’ Mnancial condltion.
The Company monitors collateral levels on a regular basis and requests changes in collaleral level as appropriate or if
considerad nacessary.

The Compsany enters inlo securily fransaclions on behalf of its customers involving fulure selllement. Transaclions
involving fulure selllement give rise to markel risk, which represenis the polential loss that can be caused by a change
in the market value of a pariicular financial instrument. The credit risk for Ihese lransaclions s limited to the unrealised
markst valuation losses which have been recorded in {he slatement of accounts of the custemers, As explained above,
credit risk is controlled (hrough a variety of reporling and conlrols procedures,

Mltee,
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41 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial slalements were authorised for issue un"{cf

A ﬁ.,w( 200

-

by the Board of Directors of fhe

Company.
42 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off lo the neares! Rupees, unless otherwise slated,
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